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RESPONSES TO SECOND ROUND OF INTERROGATORIES
FROM BOARD STAFF

Reference:  S1.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 10

Request

Is the figure of $1,034/hr for executive costs a typo? If not, please provide an explanation
and arithmetical reconciliation as to how GLPT arrives at this number. If the figure
includes travel costs, or other incidentals, please indicate why these would not already been
captured in an existing Account for travel expenses.

Response

The $1,034/hr includes the annual costs for salary, stock compensation, incentive pay and
benefits for the 2009 year. The hourly amounts were calculated based on a 7.5 hour work
day over 240 working days per year for each of the two executives providing service. The
amount allocated to GLPT reflects an average of 13.5 days per executive per year, on the
assumption of a 7.5 hour work day.

Any travel costs associated with these activities are absorbed by the parent company and are
not reflected in any part of GLPT’s rate application.
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Reference:  S2.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 12

Requests

(i) GLPT did not answer the question in the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 12,
part (ii). Staff asked for GLPT to define “Natural Business Growth”. Staff did not
ask whether or not it was occurring. Please define this term and provide concrete
examples of what items GLPT would and would not consider “Natural Business
Growth” in the context of this proceeding and recent reorganization.

(i) Please explain why the growth in staffing levels and OM&A, in particular at the
OSCC, would have occurred regardless of the sale of GLPDI.

(iii) In the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 12, part (vii), please confirm if the
incremental OM&A from 2009 to 2010 due to “natural business growth” is a
permanent increase, or a temporary increase related to work programs at GLPT.
Does GLPT expect work programs to decrease in 2011 and beyond to lower levels
than those recorded in the test year application?

Responses

0] Natural Business Growth was a term developed by GLPT to classify certain costs.
Natural Business Growth is defined by GLPT as growth that would have occurred
in the transmission business regardless of the reorganization of Great Lakes Power
Limited or the sale of the distribution business. This growth is related to activities
that are required to maintain or improve existing operations while adhering to
regulatory requirements.

The increase in vegetation management expenditures (ROW Maintenance) are an
example of Natural Business Growth. The increased expenditures are required to
ensure that GLPT is able to comply with IESO reliability standards for vegetation
management and vegetation-caused outages, adopted from NERC reliability
standards (Vegetation Management Standard FAC-003-01). GLPT has had to meet
these standards regardless of any organizational or corporate changes that have
taken place in connection with the transmission and distribution businesses. As
such, GLPT classifies the increases in OM&A between 2006 and 2010 as a direct
result of natural growth or development of the transmission business.

One example of an item that is not considered Natural Business Growth is GLPT’s
reallocation of executive salaries, excluding the amount of $70,000 related to
Director, Legal and Regulatory, as this amount would have been incurred in
transmission operations regardless of the split of transmission and distribution.

This allocation in costs occurred as a result of the development of the organizational
structure. Prior to the sale of the distribution business the shared general
management team was able to oversee both the distribution business and the
transmission business. At the time of the sale of the distribution business, the
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members of the shared management team were relieved of their duties related to the
distribution business and have since been able to focus 100% of their time and
resources on the transmission business. As a result, these costs are allocated
entirely to GLPT. While GLPT has experienced an increase in costs related to a
stand alone management team, GLPT has received the benefit of increased
productivity of the management team as outlined in response to Board Staff
Supplementary Interrogatory S7(i).

Other examples of Natural Business Growth are set out in GLPT’s response to
Board Staff Interrogatory 12.

Any staffing levels associated with the OSCC are independent of the sale of GLPDI
because only a small component of the OSCC served the distribution business.
This component continues to be provided to Algoma Power Inc., as described in
response to Board Staff Interrogatory 38(ii).

Other areas where growth in staffing levels and OM&A are experienced include
vegetation management, office complex costs and transmission development, all of
which are a direct result of the changing environment in which GLPT operates, and
would have occurred regardless of the sale of GLPDI.

The incremental OM&A from 2009 to 2010 due to Natural Business Growth is a
permanent increase related to work programs at GLPT. For the most part, GLPT
does not expect work programs to decrease in 2011 and beyond to levels lower than
those recorded in the test year application. The only decrease GLPT anticipates at
this time is in vegetation management. The total decrease in this activity will be
determined during the 2011 budgeting process, and will be incorporated in GLPT’s
next transmission rate application.
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Reference:  S3.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 18

Requests

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Please provide an explanation and table which provides a summary of the evolution
with respect to office complex allocation percentages. The table should clearly
show 12% allocation as the starting point, and progress through to the 52%
allocation to GLPT as applied, providing with each change an approximate date that
the change took place, and the specific driver(s) behind the increase.

Please provide the square footage of the building being used by GLPT at 12%
allocation and contrast it with the 52% allocation. Please quantify the amount of
space allocated to GLPT which is sitting idle, i.e. if GLPT has allocated excess
building capacity. Does Algoma Power Inc. have a similar allocation of excess
building capacity for future growth?

Please provide the square footage of the facility that is occupied by the OSCC in
both absolute terms and as a percentage of the total internal office square footage.

Responses

(i)

GLPT has reconciled the office complex allocation percentages to 54% as outlined
in the response to Board Staff Interrogatory 18 as opposed to the 52% referenced
above.

Allocation Date of Specific Driver
% Change

Initial Allocation 12% Based upon employees performing transmission

functions only and excluding employees that
perform distribution only or a combination of
transmission and distribution.

Increase related to re-allocation of 29% Accurate allocation by square footage based upon
office space arising from the physical January stand-alone transmission

separation of transmission and 1, 2009
distribution

Increase related to OSCC 13% July 1, Full Control of OSCC

2009

Allocation for Test Year 54%

(ii)

The square footage of the building GLPT used at 12% is not determinable. As
stated in GLPT’s response to SEC Interrogatory #13(f), prior to the separation, the
distribution and transmission businesses shared employees and space. As such, for
the time period prior to the separation, specific allocation of space at the facility at
Sackville Rd. is not available.
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The square footage of the building GLPT used at 54% is approximately 23,090
square feet, of which 11,440 square feet is considered office square footage. The
remaining area reflects the building’s basement, which includes storage, IT
facilities, worker change rooms and other non-office areas.

Currently, GLPT has approximately 268 square feet of available office space for
future expansion. This is reflected in the floor plan provided at Exhibit 10, Tab 3,
Schedule 2, Appendix 13(f).

GLPT is not aware of any excess capacity that may or may not be available to
Algoma Power Inc. in its portion of the complex.

The area of the facility that is occupied by the OSCC is approximately 2,900 square
feet or 26% of the current GLPT office allocation.
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Reference:  S4.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 21

Requests

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

With reference to the second table provided at the Response to Board staff
Interrogatory 21, part (iii), on what basis are the non-inflationary increases of 4.7%
for “Union employees” in 2008-2009, as well as the non-inflationary increase of
“Non-Union” employees” of 10.6% for 2008-2009 and, and 7.4% for 2009-2010,
considered reasonable increases in light of the economic environment cited by and
faced by the utility in these operating years?

The Response to Board staff Interrogatory 21, part (vi), did not respond directly to
the original Board staff Interrogatory 21, part (vi). Please reproduce the 19% and
40% figures mathematically based on the explanation provided. If a mathematically
based response to provide this calculation is not possible, please provide an
explanation as to why the calculation cannot be provided?

With reference to Response to Board staff Interrogatory 21, part (ix), please
confirm that any increases in addition to the 3% inflationary figure as a result of job
class progressions may occur and are in no way automatic or guaranteed increases
to the 3% figure presented.

Responses

(i)

As noted in GLPT’s response to Board Staff Interrogatory #21(x), the non-
inflationary increases are related to changes in staff mix and salary progressions.
The changes in staff mix as related to non-unionized employees relates to changes
made to the composition of the senior management team. The organizational
structure of the senior management team is not unusual for the industry. This is
reflected in the benchmarking study performed by First Quartile Consulting, as
discussed in response to Board Staff Interrogatory 5. The changes in staff mix as
related to unionized employees relates primarily to the allocation of OSCC staff to
GLPT. OSCC staff are in relatively high pay bands.

Compensation is also affected by salary progressions which are commensurate with
experience and education. GLPT operates in a competitive marketplace for
personnel and requires highly skilled employees with various types of expertise to
operate effectively. The skills of many of GLPT’s employees are sought after even
in difficult economic environments (perhaps even more so in these environments, as
companies are seeking higher productivity levels and greater efficiencies), and
GLPT has an obligation to attract and retain high quality human resources by
rewarding performance where warranted.
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Increases in Benefits per FTE - 2006-2010 Union Non-Union
Pension Expense 11.6% 6.4%
Post-Employment Benefits 1.5% 1.8%
Employer Health Tax 1.3% 1.6%
Canada Pension 0.9% 0.9%
Dental Premiums 1.5% 1.7%
Health Premiums 4.1% 4.7%
Life Insurance Premiums 0.2% 0.2%
Long-Term Disability Premiums 2.0% 2.4%
Vision-care 0.8% 0.9%
Short-Term Disability Premiums 3.6% 1.1%
Employment Insurance -0.1% -0.1%
WSIB 0.2% 0.2%
27.5% 21.8%
Estimated Variance Resulting from Staff Mix -1.0% 21.1%
Net Variance 26.4% 42.9%
Variance in Table 4-2-3 A 19.6% 39.6%

The table above demonstrates the various drivers for the increase in the cost of
benefits on a per FTE basis. The figures were calculated based on an average
employee in each of the union and non-union groups (using the average base salary
for each of 2006 and 2010 provided in Table 4-2-3 A). The figures are not precise
primarily because there are a number of factors that can affect benefit costs such as
an employee’s base wages, marital status, and in some cases personal choices.
However, this does provide some additional insight as to what the specific drivers
are for the increases.

The variance resulting from staff mix was calculated at a high level. For the non-
union group, the increase was significant because instead of temporary staff growing
proportionally with the regular staff, the temporary staff decreased significantly. A
high level walk-through for this calculation is as follows:

GLPT took the total benefits from 2006 ($259,600), divided it by the total number of
regular staff (13.5 — 2.7 = 10.8) to come up with a “2006 benefit cost per regular
employee” of approximately $24,000. The “2006 benefit cost per regular employee”
was applied to the 2010 regular employees ($24,000 * 25 = $600,000) to identify
what the benefit costs would be in 2010 using the 2010 staff mix. As noted, this
yielded a total benefit cost of $600,000, which when divided by the number of
FTE’s for 2010 (25.8) yielded a benefit cost per FTE of $23,300. The variance
between this benefit cost per FTE and the 2006 benefit cost per FTE was deemed to
be the variance resulting from the change in the staff mix. In this case, it was
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(($23,300 - $19,200) / $19,200), or 21%.

(iii) Confirmed.
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Reference:  S5.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 23

Requests

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Please provide further explanation as to how the table provided in Response to
Board Staff Interrogatory 23, part (ii) is intended to be interpreted.

For instance it appears that if “Business Performance” is met 43.5% of the time for
2006, does this mean 56.5% of the time this objective was not met? Or is the
appropriate interpretation if “Business Performance” for 2006 is at the 43.5% level
with a weighting of 30%, that this would represent an exceeding of the objectives,
on a weighted basis? (i.e., 0.435/0.3)

In general, a company that consistently meets or exceeds its incentives may have its
targets set too low. Targets that are too easily achievable generally do not provide
the necessary incentive for performance improvement. Conversely, targets that are
set too high result in unattainable levels of achievement and foster a defeatist
attitude among employees. Generally, good performance incentives are said to be
“tight but attainable”. Please comment on the level of achievement of GLPT’s
performance/incentive plan with reference to the passage above.

Can the chart be interpreted that GLPT has been progressively worse performing on
“Business Performance” since 2006? Please comment on GLPT’s performance as
portrayed in the chart provided.

Based on Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 23, part (iv), can GLPT confirm
that it has no idea what its performance is compared to other utilities? If GLPT does
not compare itself to other utilities, then how does GLPT reasonably set and
monitor its incentive plan and ensure that it implements strategies consistent with
good utility practice and/or industry-wide practices?

In Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 23, part (iii) GLPT indicates that the goal
is to have “employees achieve an average of 100% of incentive pay over their
employment lifetime.” Please explain fully what this means and provide an example
using a typical GLPT employee.

Responses

(i)

The appropriate interpretation is that used in the latter part of the question posed
above. For 2006, the 43.5% level with a weighting of 30% indicates that GLPT
exceeded the expectations and staff were rewarded at a ratio of 0.435/0.3 times the
target incentive compensation for that objective. For 2009, the 17% level indicates
that GLPT did not meet expectations and as a result staff were rewarded at a ratio of
0.17/0.3 times the target incentive compensation for that objective.
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Each key performance criteria in GLPT’s incentive plan (GLPT corporate
performance objectives, working group performance, and individual performance)
has an individual weighting, depending on the performance achieved within each
key performance criteria.

GLPT believes its incentive plan establishes targets that are “tight but attainable”.
Over the past 4 years, an average GLPT employee earned an incentive pay equal to
1.2 times their target incentive rate. Given that an employee has the potential to
earn anywhere between 0 and 2 times the target incentive, it demonstrates that the
targets are attainable when appropriate effort is put forth. At the same time, there
has still been sufficient opportunity for employees to earn additional incentive-
based compensation, which promotes further performance improvement.

GLPT would be concerned about the level of difficulty if incentive payouts were
consistently at or near the maximum possible payout (ie. an average payout of 1.5 —
2.0 times the target).

The chart can be interpreted that GLPT has had declining performance with respect
to its net operating income, which is the measure of “Business Performance”, since
2006. As described in responses to various interrogatory questions filed on March
3, 2010, and as illustrated in GLPT’s historical and pro-forma financial statements,
GLPT’s net income and ROE performance has been decreasing since 2006. As
described in GLPT’s response to VECC Interrogatory #11, GLPT’s costs have
increased over this period of time with no corresponding increase in revenue.

GLPT’s incentive plan forms a part of the overall compensation package and cannot
be compared to other incentive plans on a stand-alone basis. Where a competitor’s
incentive plan may be more or less attractive than GLPT’s, there will be other
factors such as base salary or benefits that may offset the discrepancies that exist in
the incentive plan.

Over the past several years, GLPT has experienced various successes and
challenges in attracting and retaining employees. This indicates to GLPT that the
overall compensation package offered by the company is comparable to and
competitive with other companies that are competing for the same human resources.

Please refer to Board Staff Supplementary Interrogatory S5 (ii). lIdeally, an
employee will have an average factor of 1.0 over their employment lifetime, with
peaks and valleys that may occur from year to year. This is possible because the
maximum factor is 2.0 and the minimum factor is 0. An average factor of 1.0
would provide that employee with 100% of their target incentive pay over that
period. This means that over the course of an employee’s employment with GLPT,
the employee will on average meet their target level of performance.
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Reference:  S6.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 25
S6.(2) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 6(i) plus Appendix
S6.(3) First Quartile Consulting Report, page 2, Graph 1 and 2

Requests

(i) The list of companies provided at Reference S6.(2) forms the panel of companies
which were mapped at Reference S6.(3). The companies were plotted on the graphs
in quartiles rather than as individual companies.

Please provide updated versions of Graphs 1, 2, 3, and 4 at Reference S6.(3), to
depict in the updated Graphs for each individual company its metric in each of the
Graphs and denote that company by its alphanumeric identification. Please indicate
as specific footnotes to the tables if the information for certain companies from the
panel are not available for any of the plots requested.

(i) In Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 25, part (v), GLPT states that:

“[The] decision to sell its distribution assets to Great Lakes Power
Distribution Inc. (GLPDI) did not create upward pressure on total
compensation or staffing levels at the time of the asset sale.” (emphasis
added)”

Did the sale of the assets have an effect on total compensation or staffing levels in
the period after the asset sale?

Responses
(i) Please see Appendix 6(i).

(i) The sale of assets to GLPDI did not have any effect on total compensation or
staffing levels in the period after the sale of assets. The impacts on total
compensation and staffing levels occurred after the sale of GLPDI’s shares, which
is not the same as the asset sale to GLPDI. As noted in response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 25(v):

“With the exception of the change in the sharing of the General Management team
arising from the sale of GLPDI, any incremental positions filled in GLPT for 2009
or 2010 are related to natural business growth, as defined in GLPT’s response to
Board Staff Interrogatory #12(ii). The increase in total compensation related to the
shared management team is $409,990, as reflected in Exh.4/Tab2/Sch.2 at p. 51.”

Any sharing of the general management team ended with the sale of the GLPDI
shares.
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7. Reference:  S7.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 28

Requests

(i) With reference to the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 28, part (i) (b), please
demonstrate how there has been “increased productivity relating to GLPT specific
duties” for the stated new positions given that directly traceable costs for these
activities have approximately doubled from previous figures. Is it not the case that
comparative productivity has decreased on account of the increased costs
regardless of any improved focus? Is GLPT using some other criteria to define
productivity? Please provide an explanation and reasoning for such explanation.

(i) With reference to the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 28, part (i) (b), please
provide evidence which shows that accounting personnel have been reduced by
50% without a proportionate decrease in workload.

Responses

(i) There has been increased productivity related to GLPT-specific duties for the
General Manager, Director of Administration and the Director of Legal and
Regulatory on the basis that these functions are now dedicated entirely to the
transmission business. Prior to the sale of the distribution business, these functions
were shared between the transmission business and the distribution business and, as
a result, the scope of responsibility for these functions was wider. At that time, to
complete work tasks in support of that wider scope of responsibility, the business
formerly retained outside service providers to a greater extent than at present and,
as described in response to Board Staff Interrogatory 39(i), relied upon the
provision of services from its parent company to a greater extent than at present.
Currently, by being dedicated entirely to the transmission business, GLPT has been
able to reduce its dependence on consulting services with respect to First Nation
and Métis affairs and for certain legal matters. Please see response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 14(iii). In addition, as described in response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 39(i), GLPT has been able to reduce its reliance on its shareholder for
the provision of various services.

In addition to the reduced reliance on its parent company and outside service
providers, the senior management team has been able to expand its focus on
transmission-specific activities and objectives. These include, for example, seeking
external financing and applying to the Board for revised rates. For the above
reasons, GLPT regards its senior management team as being more “productive”.

! As described in 39(i), due to oversight the provision of these services from the parent company was not charged
back to GLPT in the past.
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The capacity of GLPT’s senior management team is appropriately sized for an
organization of similar complexity. In addition, the costs are reasonable as
confirmed by the benchmarking report described in response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 5.

The following paragraph expands on the earlier response to give Board Staff a
better understanding of the statement made by GLPT:

Immediately prior to the sale of distribution there were 7 staff employed in the
accounting department. After the split of transmission and distribution, GLPT
(transmission) retained 3 of the 7 staff. Although GLPT only retained 3 of the 7
staff, the three staff members were allocated more than 3/7 of the former workload.
This is because a number of tasks require a fixed amount of time, regardless of the
volume or size related to it. Some examples of these types of tasks include running
payroll, running accounts payable, creating monthly reports and analyses for
internal reporting, and preparing financial statements. Many of these tasks are
required regardless of the size of the company and require a similar amount of time
and effort to complete.
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Reference:  S8.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 38

Requests

(i) With reference to Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 38, part (ii), please provide
the accompanying forecasted dollar amount that is attributed to the 5% allocation of
costs of the OSCC for “contact service”. Is this allocation for both capital and
operating costs? Please explain.

(i) With reference to Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 38, part (ii), please provide
any evidence GLPT has to support its claim that the original response that the
historical allocation between transmission and distribution functions at the GLPL
OSCC was 5%. (Presumably this means 95% was allocated to transmission
functions.) Similar to the Navigant Report, were any professional studies performed
to confirm that this allocation was/is appropriate? If not, please provide the basis for
this allocation

Responses

(i) Please refer to GLPT’s response to Board Staff Interrogatory #41(i) for the
forecasted dollar amount to be allocated to the distribution company for OSCC
services. This allocation includes OM&A costs only, which includes the
appropriate 5% portion of the operating lease for the SCADA system.

(i) Please refer to GLPT’s response to Board Staff Interrogatory #41(i) which outlines
the actual historical allocation between transmission and distribution. Based on the
actual duties performed, management in charge of the OSCC determined the 5%
estimate to be a reasonable approximation of the time and resources dedicated to the
distribution business. There were no professional studies performed to confirm this
allocation. In GLPT’s opinion, given the limited work performed on behalf of
distribution, such a study would not have yielded an appropriate cost-benefit. To
clarify, the Navigant Report dealt with the allocation of OSCC as between
generation and transmission. The Report found that generation was allocated 60%
and transmission/distribution was allocated 40%. Of the total costs, 2% was
allocated to distribution (representing 5% of the portion allocated to
transmission/distribution under the Navigant Report) and 38% was allocated to
transmission (representing 95% of the portion allocated to transmission/distribution
under the Navigant Report).



EB-2009-0408
Exhibit 11

Tab 1
Schedule 1

15 of 55

Reference:  S9.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 45
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 45 asked why management chose a partnership structure for
GLPT LP rather than a corporation like that of the two owners. The Response to that
Board Staff Interrogatory 45 referenced to another Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 47 ii). The response stated that another holding within Brookfield
Infrastructure Holdings (Canada) Inc. (“BIH”) was structured as a partnership, a
partnership structure simplifies tax return filing requirements within a group of related
entities, and a partnership structure facilitates the sharing of losses within a related
group of entities. The response did not address any tax advantages or disadvantages for
GLPT LP (for specifically the Applicant) being structured as a partnership.

Requests

Q) What are the advantages for tax purposes for GLPT LP (for specifically the
Applicant) being structured as a partnership rather than a corporation, or a
division of a corporation, as suggested by GLPT in the Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 47 ii)?

(i) What are the disadvantages for tax purposes for GLPT LP (for specifically the
Applicant) being structured as a partnership rather than a corporation, or a
division of a corporation, as suggested by GLPT in Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 47 ii)?

Responses

(1) There are no tax-specific advantages or disadvantages for the Applicant itself
from structuring GLPT LP as a partnership, since the transmission business operations
are subject to Canadian and Ontario corporate taxation regardless of the form of its
holding. That is, GLPT LP cannot reasonably be viewed in isolation for tax purposes
because substantially all of its income and capital are taxed at the corporate level in the
same way as it would be if it were a division of its limited partner, BIH (Canada), and
the balance is taxed in the hands of the general partner, GLPT GP Inc.

(i)  Please see GLPT’s response to Supplementary Interrogatory S9(i) above.
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Reference:  S10.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 46

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 46 asked what other corporate structures were considered and
rejected for the Transmission Business of the former GLPL and reasons for the
rejection of other structures. Response to that Board Staff Interrogatory 46 referenced
the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 47 ii). The response stated that the
partnership result is no different than had BIH held its share of the business assets of
GLPT and Island Timberlands LP directly as separate divisions in the same
corporation. The response did not specifically state the other corporate structures that
were considered and did not provide reasons for the rejection of any alternative
structure.

Request
Q) In the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 47 ii), GLPT stated that:

“the result is no different than had BIH held its share of the business
assets of GLPT and Island Timberlands directly as separate divisions in
the same corporation.”

Please outline the reasons for the rejection of this structure. Why did GLPT not
state specifically that it considered structuring GLPT as a division of a
corporation, or as another specific structure? Please outline the other structures
that were considered and the reasons for rejection of these other structures, in
particular from a tax planning standpoint

Response

(i) Holding GLPT’s business through a limited partnership was considered from the
outset by BIH (Canada) to be the preferred ownership structure since BIH (Canada)’s
other investment, Island Timberlands, was already in partnership form at the time it
was acquired and keeping BIH (Canada) as a pure holding company invested in
partnerships offered the tax compliance and loss utilization efficiencies outlined in the
response to Board Staff Interrogatory #47 (ii).

As a consequence of the partnership structure being the natural choice under the
circumstances, there was no formal analysis performed of the alternative structures and
the reasons for consideration and rejection of alternatives was implicit rather than
explicit.

While holding a business through a partnership rather than simply as a division of a
corporation is tax-neutral on a day-to-day basis, the existence of a partnership can
simplify any potential corporate reorganization involving the relevant business.
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Reference:  S11.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 48

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 48 i) asked whether the Applicant believed that costs not
incurred or not expected to be incurred in its normal business operations should be
recovered from Ontario’s ratepayers and to explain why, with reference to the
Applicant bearing the burden of proof and ensuring that costs are reasonable and
prudently incurred, as quoted in the Preambles to that Board Staff Interrogatory 48.
The Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 48 cited that “in strict legal theory it is the
partners who are the relevant parties in contracts entered into by a partnership.” The
response did not specifically address whether the requested tax provision in the
proposed revenue requirement was “reasonable and prudently incurred” and did not
“bear the burden of proof’ to support these costs. The Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 48 stated that the partners of the Applicant and not the applicant itself
had reasonably expected to incur these costs. No reference to “prudently incurred”
costs was made by the Applicant in the response. The response did not state why these
costs should be recovered from Ontario’s ratepayers.

Requests

Q) Please state how the Applicant, and not its owners, bears the burden of proof
and actually incurs “reasonable and prudently incurred” costs with respect to
the requested tax provision in the proposed revenue requirement. Please
explain why these costs should be recovered from Ontario’s ratepayers.

(i) Please provide the case law references that describe what the Applicant is
characterizing as “strict legal theory”. The Applicant has stated that in “strict
legal theory” it is the partners who are the relevant parties in contracts entered
into by a partnership.

Responses

(i) GLPT believes the questions in Interrogatory S11 are posed from the perspective
that the Applicant, GLPT LP, is a separate legal entity (See response to S11(ii), below)
and that the questions suggest that any costs incurred in respect of its business that it
did not incur on its own account may not be relevant to the proposed revenue
requirement. While such an approach is effective and consistent with both the
substance and form of a business carried on by a corporation, this model is not
applicable to a business carried on in a partnership. Such an approach is inconsistent
with the both the substance and legal form of Canadian partnerships.

Since partnerships are not distinct legal persons and cannot be distinguished from their
partners under either common law or Canadian tax law, it is appropriate for the Board
to consider the following tax-related responses as though BIH (Canada) and Great
Lakes Power Transmission GP Inc., the two partners of GLPT LP, were the relevant
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Applicants. This is because the partnership is comprised of the two partners. Their
partnership does not create a separate or distinct legal entity. This is basically the case
both in terms of economic substance and common law and it is consistent for rate
application purposes as well.

GLPT interprets the question as a request for an explanation of how the Applicant, and
not its owners, discharges the Applicant’s burden of proof and actually incurs
reasonable and prudently incurred” costs in respect of the requested tax provision and
why such costs should be recovered from Ontario’s ratepayers. Under the
circumstances, GLPT cannot be distinguished from its partners for legal and tax
purposes and, as such, it would be inequitable and legally incorrect to do so for rate
application purposes. Ontario ratepayers should bear only the costs, risks and benefits
arising from the provision of the regulated services in question. This standard would
not be met if GLPT’s rates did not take into consideration the corporate taxation of
GLPT’s income arising from the provision of its services.

GLPT believes that the tax calculations in question are reasonable and prudently
incurred costs. Except where noted in GLPT’s pre-filed evidence, taxes are calculated
in compliance with both the letter and spirit of enacted federal and Ontario tax law.

(i) A concise summary of common law and tax law views on partnerships and their
partners is provided in Madsen v. The Queen 99 DTC 5470 (Federal Court of Appeal):

“A partnership's lack of separate legal personality is what distinguishes it from an
individual or corporation. The Income Tax Act (the “Act”) maintains this lack of legal
personality, and does not generally treat partnerships as taxpayers. Instead, it is the
individual partners who pay tax on the basis of their particular share of the income or
losses of the partnership. In order for this "flow through” of tax consequences to take
place, subsection 96(1) of the Act requires that the income or losses of the partnership
be computed as if the partnership were a "separate person™ and each "partnership
activity"” . . . were carried on by the partnership as a separate person. . . . As a part of
this conceptual separation, expenditures to acquire depreciable property are capitalized
at the partnership level, and capital cost allowance is only deductible at that stage.
Section 1102(1a) protects the integrity of calculating capital cost allowance at the
partnership level by ensuring that depreciable assets owned by a partner in his or her
personal capacity are not intermingled with assets of the same class owned by the
partnership. The foregoing "regime" implies nothing more than a notional construct
for calculating a taxpayer's tax liability. It is a purely administrative convenience
necessary to sustain the Act's view of the partnership as a conduit or vehicle for
taxpayers.

In this way, the fiction of a partnership as an entity separate from the partners is
temporary and does not extend to colour the true legal nature of transactions at the time
they are entered into by a partnership. The characterization of legal relationships is
generally left to established principles of partnership law. This approach was most
recently affirmed by this Court in Adams v. Canada (appeal by Robinson) where



Robertson, J.A. made the following observations:

[11] It is well accepted that at common law a partnership does not
constitute a distinct legal person such that it is separate from its
members. Indeed, it is the lack of a separate legal personality and
limited liability that distinguishes a partnership from a corporation. In
this regard, the Income Tax Act recognizes the lack of legal personality
of a partnership by not treating "it" as a taxpayer. Admittedly, a
partnership must file an annual information return setting out the
income of the partnership, but it is the individual partners who are
liable to pay tax on the partnership's income. For taxation purposes the
partnership is treated as a "separate person resident in Canada" solely
for the purpose of calculating income at the partnership level. In this
way each partner's share of the income may be allocated accordingly:
see paragraph 96(1)(a).

[12] Accepting that a partnership does not constitute a distinct legal
entity, neither at common law nor for tax purposes, then in strict legal
theory the true tenants under a lease entered into by a partnership are
the individual partners existing as of the date of the lease. Title to land,
whether it be freehold or leasehold, cannot vest in a non-entity such as
a partnership: see A.B. Oosterhoff, W.B. Rayner, Anger and Honsberger
Law of Real Property, vol. 2 (Toronto: Canada Law Book, 1985) at
1256. In the present case each of the eighteen doctors in the Partnership
must be deemed to have been a tenant under the lease agreement of May
21, 1985.”

Preamble
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Board Staff Interrogatory 48 ii) asked that given the Board’s objectives to protect the
interests of consumers with respect to prices, and to promote economic efficiency and

cost effectiveness in the industry, what were the assumptions and evidence that the

Board should consider in approving recovery of the tax costs that will not be incurred
by the regulated utility. The Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 48 ii) referenced the

fact that a partnership does not constitute a distinct legal person. The response stated

that:

*“...the standalone principle should be invoked such that only BIH’s income
earned from the regulated transmission business is taken into consideration

when determining relevant income tax costs in respect of the transmission
business.”

The Board’s objectives were not addressed by the Applicant in its response. The

response did not address the fact that the tax costs will not be incurred by GLPT LP,

the regulated utility.
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(ili)  Given the Board’s objectives to protect the interest of consumers with respect to

(iv)

prices and to promote economic efficiency and cost effectiveness in the
industry, why should the Board approve a tax provision in GLPT LP’s revenue
requirement when these costs will not be incurred? The Applicant should
specifically reference these Board objectives in its response.

Why should the standalone principle be invoked when the partnership will not
actually incur tax costs?

Responses

(iii)

The tax provisions included in GLPT’s rate application should be approved

because a) such income taxes are costs incurred by the partners of GLPT LP that are
directly related in the provision of transmission services in the Province of Ontario; and
b) since these same taxes would also be incurred had the transmission business been
held as a division of BIH (Canada) rather than through a limited partnership, the choice
of investment vehicle in no way infringes on the interests of consumers with respect to
economic efficiency and cost effectiveness in the industry.

(iv)

The standalone principal was raised in GLPT’s response to Board Staff

Interrogatory #48 (ii) in the context of which tax costs are relevant for inclusion in
GLPT’s revenue requirement. That initial response and the foregoing responses in this
submission affirm that taxes directly related to income earned by GLPT LP are relevant
to the rate application. Since BIH (Canada) has two sources of income, one regulated
(GLPT LP) and one not regulated (a timber business), the standalone principal was
invoked in the interest of Ontario ratepayers to clarify that income from the timber
business was not relevant to the determination of taxes specifically related to the power
transmission business.
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Reference:  S12.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 49
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 49 i) asked whether it is in the public interest of Ontario
ratepayers that such ratepayers should pay for notional taxes that will not be incurred
by GLPT LP since management chose its structure to be a non-taxable entity. The
response referenced the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 48 i) and ii). The
response to the Interrogatory referenced “strict legal theory” such that it is the partners
who are the relevant parties in contracts entered into by a partnership. The response to
the Interrogatory referenced the fact that a partnership does not constitute a distinct
legal person. The response to the Interrogatory stated that:

*“... the standalone principle should be invoked such that only BIH’s income
earned from the regulated transmission business is taken into consideration
when determining relevant income tax costs in respect of the transmission
business.”

These responses did not specifically reference the public interest of Ontario ratepayers.

Request

Q) Please explicitly reference the public interest of Ontario ratepayers as to
whether it is in their interest that such ratepayers should pay for notional taxes
that will not be incurred by GLPT LP.

Response

(i)  Under the circumstances, the Applicant cannot be distinguished from its partners
for legal and tax purposes and, as such, it is the opinion of GLPT that it would be
inequitable and legally incorrect to do so for regulatory purposes. Ontario ratepayers
should bear only the costs, risks and benefits arising from the provision of the regulated
services in question. This standard would not be met if GLPT’s rates did not take into
consideration the corporate taxation of GLPT’s income arising from the provision of its
services.

While GLPT acknowledges that it would not be in the public interest to include taxes
(notional or otherwise) that are not relevant to the regulated business, this is not the
case with respect to GLPT LP’s rate application. The taxable income allocated to the
partners of GLPT LP is relevant due to the nature of partnerships under common law
and similar treatment under Canadian tax law. It is in the public interest for Ontario
ratepayers to bear tax costs directly relevant to the services provided by GLPT LP.

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 49 ii) asked why Brookfield believes it is in the public
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interest of Ontario ratepayers that in all likelihood the distributions to the ultimate
unitholders of GLPT LP may reside outside of Ontario, and the Ontario government
may not get the benefit of tax revenues on such distributions. The Response to Board
Staff Interrogatory 49 ii) stated that:

“both partners of GLPT are taxable Canadian corporations and as such incur
tax liabilities...*

That response also indicated that distributions paid by BIH are paid after tax. The
response did not specifically reference the fact that the Ontario government may not
get the benefit of tax revenues on distributions to the ultimate unitholders of GLPT LP.
It is not clear from that Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 49 ii) why it is stated
that BIH distributions are paid after tax when BIH does not pay any tax.

Requests

(i) Please explain how the Ontario government will get the benefit of tax revenues
on distributions to the ultimate unitholders of GLPT LP.

(i) Why is the Applicant referencing in its Response to Board Staff Interrogatory
49 ii) that all distributions by BIH are paid after tax, and that both partners of
GLPT are taxable Canadian corporations, when in the Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 55 f) BIH did not pay any income taxes in 2007 and 2008 and in
the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 55 e) GLPT Inc. did not pay any
income or capital taxes in 2007 and paid nominal taxes 2008 (less than $150 of
total federal, provincial, and capital taxes)?

Responses

(i)  This question relates to Ontario government tax policy and not rate-making
policy. As such, GLPT submits that the taxation of the ultimate investors of GLPT is
beyond the scope of the Board’s mandate. This is elaborated upon in the response to
Supplemental Interrogatory 15 iii) below.

It should be noted that the taxation of GLPT’s ultimate investors would be expected to
be similar for all other publicly-held utilities in Ontario. For example, Union Gas and
Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. are each regulated by the Board but are wholly owned
subsidiaries of public corporations (Spectra Energy and Enbridge Inc., respectively)
that have other interests, operations and shareholders residing outside of Ontario.

(iii)  That the partners of GLPT LP are taxable Canadian corporations is a statement
of fact. “Taxable Canadian corporation” is defined for the purposes of the Income Tax
Act in subsection 89(1) and basically includes all Canadian corporations that are not
tax-exempt entities. That is, both BIH (Canada) and GLPT GP Inc. are subject to
taxation on their income and, in contrast to a pension fund or crown corporation, have
no outright exemption from taxation in Canada.

While a corporation may be a taxable Canadian corporation, it is still only liable for
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paying tax in a year in which it has taxable income. The Board observed that BIH did
not pay income tax in 2007 or 2008. This is due to tax losses sustained on BIH’s share
of the Island Timberlands business. As outlined in GLPT’s submissions on the
standalone principle, it is GLPT’s position that the results of BIH’s unregulated
activities should not factor into the calculation of regulatory revenue requirement of the
regulated business.

That BIH’s distributions to its shareholders are made “after tax,” is also a statement of
fact. A corporation is generally precluded under corporate law from making
distributions to the extent that such distribution would impair the corporation’s ability
to satisfy its obligations. As the tax authorities are viewed as creditors in respect of
any income tax liabilities, distributions are generally limited to a corporation’s cash on
hand after any tax liabilities have been taken into consideration.
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Reference:  S13.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 50
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 50 asked if GLPT believed that there is a precedent in
Ontario for its request to receive a tax proxy in the revenue requirement of a regulated
entity that is not taxable and to state the precedent. The Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 50 stated that GLPT believed that there is no other regulated utility in
Ontario that is a limited partnership and there is no precedent in Ontario.

That response also stated that as noted in Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 47 ii)
(which referenced the GLPL Distribution decision [EB-2007-0744]):

*“...the Board has established a tax allowance in an analogous circumstance of
business divisions, which are in themselves not taxable entities.”

Board staff is not clear on why the Applicant is referring to the EB-2007-0744 decision
as an “analogous circumstance” and indicating that a business division, such as
GLPL’s Distribution division in EB-2007-0744, is not a taxable entity. Board staff is
also unclear on this statement in light of references in Great Lakes Power Limited’s
2007 electricity distribution rate application, Reply Submission, June 2, 2008 [EB-
2007-0744] which stated the following:

o Page 21 “The GLPL Distribution [Division] as a regulated entity creates
a tax burden for GLPL Corporate.”

o Page 22 “GLPL’s distribution net income forms part of GLPL’s
corporate net income and therefore forms part of GLPL’s corporate
taxable income.”

o Page 24 “At issue is the manner in which GLPL Distribution accounts
for and reports for tax purposes the revenue it earns for distributing
electricity in a particular year. The accounting and reporting of revenues
for income tax purposes must be determined. If in a particular year
GLPL Distribution on a stand alone basis reports taxable income, then
GLPL Distribution would be entitled to a tax allowance.”

Requests

Q) With the above references to the EB-2007-0744 Reply Submission in mind,
why does the Applicant believe that the EB-2007-0744 decision is an
“analogous circumstance” to the Applicant’s circumstance, particularly since:

a) the corporate structures of a division and a limited partnership are
different; and

b) GLPL Distribution was established to be taxable in EB-2007-0744 and
in this proceeding the Applicant has established that GLPT LP is not
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taxable. (Reference Exh.1/Tab3/Schl/GLPT LP’s 2008 audited financial
statements/Note 13 on page 13: “...the Partnership is not subject to
income taxation...”)

Please explain why the Applicant agrees or disagrees with these statements.

Responses

(i)  While GLPT agrees that divisions of a corporation have fundamental differences
with partnerships in terms of form, there are in substance sufficient similarities
between the structures to inform the Board on the equitable treatment of partnerships in
the absence of definitive regulations on the matter.

In particular, as a division of a corporation, GLPL’s Distribution business was not in
and of itself a standalone legal person. This parallels GLPT’s legal status as a limited
partnership. Moreover, the income earned by GLPL’s Distribution division was taxed
in the hands of the corporate entity that owns the division: Great Lakes Power Limited.
Similarly, GLPT LP’s income is taxed in the hands of the two corporate entities that
have partnership interests (i.e., each has an undivided interest in the limited
partnership’s assets and liabilities): BIH (Canada) and GLPT GP Inc. In substance,
GLPL’s Distribution division and GLPT LP have much in common in terms of
taxation.

In this context, the quotations cited by the Board from the Reply Submission dated
June 2, 2008 [EB-2007-0744] (pages 21, 22 and 24) are analogous to the case at hand.
To illustrate, the quotations have been revised below by inserting the names of GLPT
LP, BIH and GLPT GP Inc., as appropriate. This illustration demonstrates that the
principles being expressed remain equally true if the references to GLPL and its
distribution division are applied instead to GLPT and its partners:

Page 21 “[GLPT LP] as a regulated entity creates a tax burden for [BIH and GLPT
GP Inc.].

Page 22 “[GLPT LP’s] net income forms a part of [BIH and GLPT GP Inc.’s]
corporate net income and therefore forms part of [BIH and GLPT GP Inc.’s]
corporate taxable income.”

Page 24 “At issue is the manner in which [GLPT LP] accounts for and reports for tax
purposes the revenue it earns for [transmitting] electricity in a particular year. The
accounting and reporting of revenues for income tax purposes must be determined. If
in a particular year [GLPT LP] on a standalone basis reports taxable income, then
[GLPT LP] would be entitled to a tax allowance.”

Rather than GLPL Distribution having been established to be taxable in EB-2007-
0744, it was established that the taxable income arising from GLPL Distribution’s
operations were relevant to determining the tax costs to be included in GLPL
Distribution’s regulatory revenue requirement. This is a subtle but important
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distinction because the taxable income arising from GLPT’s transmission operations
are relevant to the current rate application in much the same way.
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Reference:  S14.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 51
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 51 i) asked for the split between the return of capital and
income on the distributions from GLPT LP in 2008, in dollars and percentages. The
Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 51 i) referenced the fact that no SIFT tax is
applicable to distributions by GLPT LP. That response stated that

“a partnership’s entire income for the year will be taxed in the hands of the
partners regardless of whether any actual cash distributions are made.”

That response indicated that the taxation of partnership income is independent of the
partnership’s cash distribution policies. That response did not state how the payments
from the Applicant are structured to its owners and how these payments were
characterized for tax purposes.

Request

Q) How were the payments from the Applicant structured to its owners in 2008
and 2009? How was it characterized for tax purposes? Please provide a
breakdown in dollars and percentages between income, return on capital, and
draw on capital.

Response

(i)  As a partnership, all of GLPT LP’s income for a year is allocated to its partners,
included in the partners’ income and added to the partners’ respective capital accounts.
All cash distributions are draws against the balances of those capital accounts. As
expressed in the response to Board Staff Interrogatory #51 (i), the taxation of the
partnership income is completely independent of these draws.

The 2008 audited financial statements for GLPT LP reported total allocations of
partnership income of $10.71 million and distributions of $9.54 million.

At the time of filing this response, GLPT expects that the 2009 financial statements
will report allocations of partnership income of $7.42 million and distributions of $9.0
million.

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 51 ii) asked for the planned or actual distribution splits
between the return on capital and income from GLPT LP for 2009 though 2013, in
dollars and percentages. The Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 51 ii) referenced
the fact that no SIFT tax is applicable to distributions by GLPT LP so the split between
return of capital and income is not relevant. That response did not state how the
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payments from the Applicant are structured to its owners and how these payments were
characterized for tax purposes.

Request

(i) How will the payments from the Applicant be structured to its owners for 2009
through to 2013? How will it be characterized for tax purposes? Please provide
a breakdown in dollars and percentages between income, return on capital, and
draw on capital.

Response

(i)  Asdiscussed in response S14 (i), all income for each of the partnership’s fiscal
years will be automatically allocated to the partners, included in their taxable income
and added to their partnership capital accounts. All cash distributions to the partners
will be draws against those partnership capital accounts.

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 51 iii) asked the Applicant to demonstrate how tax will be
paid by the partners of GLPT LP, in light of the fact that distributions to the partners
will likely be a return of capital and no tax will be paid. Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 51 iii) stated that any distributions of cash by GLPT LP to the partners
should have no impact on the taxability of the partnership income in the hands of the
partners. The tax impacts of the cash distributions were not discussed.

Request

(iii)  Please describe the tax implications of the cash distributions by GLPT LP to the
partners with references to the differences between income, return on capital,
and draw on capital.

Response

(i) Asdiscussed in GLPT’s response to Interrogatory #51 i), the concepts of
distributions of income versus capital are relevant to trusts but not to partnerships. All
cash distributions by a partnership are draws on the partners’ respective capital
accounts. In basic terms, for tax purposes, income earned by the partnership in a year
is included in a partner’s taxable income for that year and is also added to the adjusted
case of the partner’s partnership interest (i.e., the tax equivalent of the capital account).
Draws on the capital account reduce the adjusted cost base of the partner’s partnership
interest. If a limited partner’s adjusted cost base goes below zero due to a distribution
of cash, the partner is deemed to have realized a capital gain for tax purposes to the
extent of the negative adjusted cost base.
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Reference:  S15.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 52
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 52 asked for the split between return of capital and income
on the distributions from Brookfield Infrastructure Partners LP to the public
unitholders in 2006, 2007, and 2008, in dollars and percentages. The Response to
Board Staff Interrogatory 52 stated that the split between income and returns of capital
is not relevant to the partnership.

That response referenced an extract from BIP’s public declarations but did not
specifically provide the exact reference. That response indicated that distributions
received by the unitholders reduce the tax cost of Brookfield Infrastructure Partners
units.

However, that response did not state that that this is similar to a return on capital,
where tax on the distributions paid is deferred until the unit is sold. The response did
not indicate what the reduction of tax cost was for the unitholders in 2006, 2007, and
2008, in dollars and percentages.

Requests

Q) Please provide the exact reference document including page number for “BIP’s
public declarations” stated in the response to Staff IR #52.

(i) What was the reduction of tax cost of the units for the Brookfield Infrastructure
Partners LP unitholders in 2006, 2007, and 2008, due to distributions paid by
the LP, in dollars and percentages? Does the Applicant agree that a reduction of
tax cost is similar to a return on capital?

(iii)  As the “ultimate” unitholders of GLPT LP are the unitholders of Brookfield
Infrastructure Partners LP, and distributions paid to these unitholders are a
reduction of tax cost of the units (effectively deferring tax to be paid), why is it
in the best interests of Ontario ratepayers to pay for a notional tax cost in GLPT
LP’s revenue requirement when the Ontario government may not get in the
future the benefit of tax revenues paid by the unitholders?

Responses

(i) Asdisclosed in footnote 4 of the response to interrogatory 52 i), BIP’s
declarations can be most easily accessed at the following web page:

http://www.brookfieldinfrastructure.com/ir tax.html

The referenced statement can be found under the heading “Tax Treatment of
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Distributions”.

(i)  BIP was established in 2007, so there is no 2006 information to report. Further,
BIP did not acquire the transmission assets until March, 2008.

BIP’s comprehensive income for 2008, its first full year of operations, was US$24.1
million. Cash from operating activities was US$22.3 million. Distributions to
unitholders in the year were US$20.3 million. For Canadian tax purposes total taxable
income allocated to partners for 2008 was $15.7 million ($0.678 per unit times
23,160,269 partnership units outstanding). Roughly 77% of the 2008 distributions
related to taxable income earned for tax purposes in 2008. GLPT submits that this fact
in isolation is not in any way probative in respect of this rate application. First, this
includes results from several unregulated investments in addition to GLPT LP.
Second, due to temporary differences between tax and accounting rules, in any given
year, it is expected that income for tax purposes will not necessarily equal the
accounting results.

Concerning the question of reductions in tax cost and whether they are similar to
returns of capital, partnership distributions/draws and returns of capital are similar in
the sense that they both reduce the adjusted cost base of the investment on which the
cash distribution is made.

(i) The tax calculations included in the rate submission are limited to the
allocations of taxable income from GLPT LP to its direct partners. No amounts
relating to the potential taxation of the indirect owners of GLPT are included in the rate
submission. GLPT respectfully submits that BIP’s distributions to its investors are not
relevant to the current rate application as the scope of the interests of the Ontario
ratepayers does not extend so broadly to encompass Ontario fiscal policy and its
overall system of taxation. The OEB has no jurisdiction to pierce the corporate veil of
the corporate partners of GLPT LP to establish a tax allowance based upon the
unitholders of BIP. In other words, the Board cannot look past a corporation to the
ultimate owner of the corporation because the corporation is a separate and distinct
entity in law.

Concerning whether BIP’s distributions are tax-deferred, the distributions to partners
come from after-tax cash sources. That is, a distribution comes either from partnership
income that has already been allocated to—and subject to taxation in the hands of—the
partner, or from the original capital contributed to the partnership by the partner, which
would have come from the partner’s own after-tax cash holdings. While partnership
distributions do reduce the adjusted cost base of the partner’s interest in the
partnership, the only tax deferral related to this is the fact that taxation on a partnership
interest itself is contingent on a) the partner actually disposing of the interest; or b) the
adjusted cost base of the interest being reduced below zero (as discussed in GLPT’s
response to Interrogatory S14 (iii)).



16.

EB-2009-0408
Exhibit 11

Tab 1
Schedule 1

31 0f 55

Reference:  S16.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 54

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 54 asked the Applicant to provide the audited financial
statements for GLPL Transmission Division for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2006. The audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 were
not filed in response to Board Staff Interrogatory 54 or in the original application.

Request

Q) Please file the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2006 for GLPL Transmission Division.

Response

Q) GLPT omitted this document from its response to Board Staff Interrogatory 54
in error. Please see Appendix 16(i) for the requested document.
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Reference:  S17.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 55
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 55 a) asked for the federal T2 and Ontario CT23 signed tax
returns, and all supporting schedules, and the federal and Ontario Notice of Assessment
and any Notice of Reassessment (with Statement of Adjustments) for the corporation
that owned the GLPL Transmission division for the 2006, 2007, and 2008 tax years.
The tax returns and some notices of assessment were filed, however the audited
financial statements which accompanied the tax returns filed with The Canada Revenue
Agency were not filed.

Requests

Q) Please provide the audited financial statements which accompanied the tax
returns filed with The Canada Revenue Agency and the Ministry of Finance
for the corporation that owned the GLPL Transmission division for the 20086,
2007, and 2008 tax years If the audited financial statements are viewed as
confidential by the Applicant, please state exactly where in the audited
financial statements that competitive information is being disclosed.

(i) The Applicant stated in its response to the IR that “GLPT is seeking copies of
GLPL’s Ontario notices of assessment for 2006, 2007, and 2008, as well as
GLPL’s 2006 federal notice of assessment from its parent.” Please provide
such notices of assessment. Please provide any federal and Ontario notices of
reassessment.

Responses

Q) The requested information is being filed in accordance with the Board’s
Practice Direction on Confidential Filings.

(i) No additional information is available at the time of filing this interrogatory
response.

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 55 d) asked for the federal T2 and Ontario CT23 signed tax
returns, and all supporting schedules, and the federal and Ontario Notice of Assessment
and any Notice of Reassessment (with Statement of Adjustments) for Great Lakes
Power Transmission Inc. (“GLPT Inc.”) and Brookfield Infrastructure Holdings
(Canada) Inc. (“BIH (Canada) Inc.”) for the 2006, 2007, and 2008 tax years. The tax
returns and some notices of assessment were filed, however the audited financial
statements which accompanied the tax returns filed with The Canada Revenue Agency
were not filed.
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Requests

(iii)  Please provide the audited financial statements which accompanied the tax
returns filed with The Canada Revenue Agency and the Ministry of Finance for
GLPT Inc. and BIH (Canada) Inc. for the 2006, 2007, and 2008 tax years. If the
audited financial statements are viewed as confidential by the Applicant, please
state exactly where in the audited financial statements that competitive
information is being disclosed.

(iv)  The 2007 BIH (Canada) Inc. Ontario Notice of Assessment was not filed as
stated. The Applicant stated that other notices of assessments had not been
received yet from the taxation authorities. Please provide the 2007 BIH
(Canada) Inc. Ontario Notice of Assessment. Please provide the federal and
Ontario notices of assessment for GLPT Inc. for 2007 and 2008. Please provide
the federal and Ontario notices of assessment for BIH (Canada) Inc. for 2008.
Please provide any federal and Ontario notices of reassessment.

Responses

(ili)  GLPT Inc. and BIH (Canada) had no income from transmission activities in
2006 and 2007. As such, GLPT has not included financial statements for that period.
There are no audited financial statements which accompanied the tax returns in 2008.
The partners prepared an income reconciliation form that was provided with the 2008
income tax returns. GLPT has attached this information for both GLPT Inc. and BIH
(Canada). The information in respect of GLPT Inc. is provided in Appendix 17(iii)
and the information in respect of BIH (Canada) is being filed in accordance with the
Board’s Practice Direction on Confidential Filings.

(iv)  No additional information is available at the time of filing this interrogatory
response.
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Reference:  S18.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 60
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 60 i) asked for the fair market value in dollars for tax
purposes of the transmission assets on, or about, March 12, 2008. The Response to
Board Staff Interrogatory 60 i) stated that the fair market value of the transmission
assets on March 12, 2008 for tax purposes is dictated by the net book value of the fixed
assets, which was $210.4 million. Staff is unclear why the Applicant stated that the fair
market value of the transmission assets for tax purposes was “dictated by the net book
value of the fixed assets.”

Requests

Q) Does the Applicant believe that it is a true statement that “the fair market value
of the transmission assets on March 12, 2008 for tax purposes is dictated by the
net book value of the fixed assets...”, as stated in the Response to Board Staff
Interrogatory 60 1)? Please explain.

(i) Does the Applicant agree that the statement quoted in (i) above is contradictory
to the statement made in the prefiled evidence on Exh. 4/Tab3/Sch.2/Page
5/Lines 13-14. This statement in the prefiled evidence states “... the tax value
of the assets to GLPT going forward is higher than GLPL °‘s closing balance.”

Please provide explanation of the seemingly contradictory statements shown above.

Responses

Q) The applicant believes the statement is true. The future cash flow is directly
related to the net book value of the assets.

(i) GLPT does not agree that the statement quoted in (i) above is contradictory to
the statement made in the prefiled evidence on Exh. 4/Tab3/Sch.2/Page 5/Lines
13-14. The statement quoted in (i) above relates to the determination of fair
market value. The reference to tax value in the statement referred to in (ii)
relates to the calculation of UCC balances for tax purposes. Put more simply,
the UCC of the transmission assets when acquired by GLPT LP was higher than
the historic UCC in the hands of GLPL prior to the sale because the new UCC
is based on the March 2008 purchase price (i.e., fair market value), which
exceeds the historic UCC. This is elaborated in the response to (iii), below.

Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 60 iii) and iv) asked for the tax values in dollars of the assets
sold by GLPL on or about March 12, 2008 and for the tax values in dollars of the assets
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purchased by GLPT LP on or about March 12, 2008.

Requests

(iii)  Why is the opening UCC of assets purchased approximately $48 million greater
than the closing UCC of assets sold?

(iv)  Please explain how the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 60 iv) impacts the
numbers provided in that same Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 60 part
iii) and part iv) - please provide detailed calculations.

This statement by the Applicant in the Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 60
iv) stated that:

*“...under Canadian tax law, the maximum UCC that can be added from
the purchase of depreciable assets from a related party is the original
cost to the vendor plus 50% of any capital gains realized by the vendor
upon the sale.”

Please provide the tax reference material that supports the above quoted
statement.

Responses

(ili)  The opening UCC of assets purchased by GLPT LP is approximately $48
million greater than the closing UCC of assets sold by GLPL because the new
UCC is based on the amount paid by GLPT LP for the assets. However, since
this was a non-arm’s length transaction, the maximum amount GLPT LP can
add to its opening UCC balance is the original cost incurred by the vendor plus
50% of any capital gains realized by the vendor upon the sale, as per
subparagraph 13(7)(e)(ii) of the Income Tax Act.

(iv)  Asreferenced in (iii), above, the provision that limits UCC in non-arm’s length
transactions is subparagraph 13(7)(e)(ii) of the Income Tax Act.

To reconcile the $48 million difference between GLPL’s closing UCC balance
of $140 million and GLPT LP’s opening UCC balance of $188 million, the
$188 million balance is determined pursuant to subparagraph 13(7)(e)(ii) of the
Act as follows:

Original tax cost of transmission assets: $179.6 million
Plus 50% on gain on sale of assets: $8.8 million

Equals total UCC to GLPT LP: $188.4 million
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Reference:  S19.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 61
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory 61 ii) asked who was the regulator that approved the
comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000 to be included in rate base. The Applicant
stated in its response that:

“neither the AOP [APH] nor GAAP required that assets and liabilities that
had been previously valued in accordance with GAAP be revalued for
purposes of establishing APH accounts.”

The Applicant did not list the regulator that approved the comprehensive revaluation in
rate base.

Request

Q) Please state the regulator that knowingly approved the comprehensive
revaluation of $78,941,000 in rate base.

Response

Q) There was no regulatory requirement for GLPL to make a rate filing in respect
of the comprehensive revaluation.

At all times, GLPT and its predecessor, GLPL, accounted for all transactions
and prepared its financial statements in accordance with GAAP. The APH was
approved by the Board in November 1999, with an implementation date of
January 1, 2000. The APH was wholly prospective in its application and its
transition provisions applied only to the capitalization of MEU’s. The value of
GLPL’s assets as of December 31, 2000 was its net book value of its assets
based upon GAAP and the APH accounts were established on that basis. The
APH did not require disclosure of any asset revaluations in periods prior to the
implementation of the APH. The transaction in question occurred four years
prior to the APH and before contemplation of market opening.

For clarification purposes, the amount that was initially recorded in GLPL’s
audited financial statements relating to the 1996 comprehensive revaluation was
$84,100,000. The difference between the $84,100,000 and $78,941,000
represents the value associated with assets that had been written off between
1996 and 2005. These are gross asset values before depreciation. The
depreciated amount included in the 2001 rate application (RP-2001-0035) was
$76,480,520.

Preamble
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Board Staff Interrogatory 61 iii) asked for the Decision that approved the
comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000 to be included in rate base. No decision
reference was provided.

Request

(i)  Please state the decision reference that approved the comprehensive revaluation
of $78,941,000 in rate base.

Response

(i) Please see response to (i) above.
Preamble

Board Staff Interrogatory #61 v) asked whether the treatment (of the Applicant
requesting to disregard the implications of the tax revaluation for regulatory tax
purposes) was not inconsistent with what was done before with the previous
comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000 for accounting and regulatory purposes that
was apparently included in rate base. The Applicant stated in its Response to Board
Staff Interrogatory 61 v) that “GLPT does not believe the tax treatment of the two
transactions to be inconsistent.” In the prefiled evidence (Exh. 4/Tab 3/Sch.2/Pg. 4-6),
the Applicant is requesting to disregard the implications of the tax revaluation for
regulatory tax purposes. It is stated In Exh. 4/Tab 3/Sch.2/Pg. 6/Lines 18-19 that:

“the transaction is effectively neutral for both accounting and tax purposes in
the eyes of the ratepayer.”

Requests

(iii)  Although the 1996 transaction was not recognized as a taxable transaction by
The Canada Revenue Agency, this comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000
was apparently added to rate base, and it is unclear whether this bump up was
included in the UCC used to calculate CCA in prior proceedings. This higher
CCA could have been used to calculate a lower tax proxy in EB-2005-0241.

In this proceeding, the implications of the tax revaluation for regulatory tax
purposes is requested to be disregarded, thus the ratepayers do not get the
benefit of a higher UCC and CCA, and lower requested tax proxy.

(iv)  Please explain why this is not an inconsistency of treatment.

Does the Applicant agree that ratepayers have been paying higher rates since
1996 due to the comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000 of fixed assets being
included in rate base? Please explain why the Applicant agrees or disagrees
with the statement.

(V) Does the Applicant agree that the comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000
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was not generated from building assets, but rather that the acquirer (Brascan)
incurred these costs in buying the underlying assets at a premium over the
underlying book value? Please explain why the Applicant agrees or disagrees
with the statement.

(vi)  Does the Applicant agree that the excess of the $78,941,000 over the underlying
value of the fixed assets for regulatory purposes should have been shown as
goodwill and excluded from rate base in prior proceedings and in this current
proceeding? Please explain why the Applicant agrees or disagrees with the
statement.

(vii) Does the Applicant agree that the last rates approved for Great Lakes Power
Limited, prior to RP-2001-0035, was in 1995, prior to the comprehensive
revaluation of $78,941,000 that occurred in 1996? Please explain why the
Applicant agrees or disagrees with the statement.

(viii) Does the Applicant agree that RP-2001-0035 was the first rate case before any
regulator to determine the revenue requirement for Great Lakes Power
Limited’s Transmission Division, subsequent to the comprehensive revaluation
of $78,941,000 which occurred in 19967 Please explain why the Applicant
agrees or disagrees with the statement.

(ix)  If the Applicant does not agree with the previous Question/Request, i.e., in (viii)
above, please provide the rate case reference and provide the reference within
the case that disclosed the comprehensive revaluation.

(x) Does the applicant agree that the rate base disclosed in RP-2001-0035, Schedule
2, Transmission Revenue Requirement, for the year ending December 31, 2000
was $125,625,000 and included the comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000?
Please explain why the Applicant agrees or disagrees with the statement.

(xi)  Does the Applicant agree that this comprehensive revaluation of $78,941,000
was not disclosed in RP-2001-0035? Please explain why the Applicant agrees or
disagrees with the statement. If the Applicant does not agree, please provide the
reference in RP-2001-0035 or in a prior proceeding which disclosed the
comprehensive revaluation.

Responses

(iii)  The 1996 comprehensive revaluation was not a taxable transaction. As a result,
there was no change permitted to UCC balances for tax purposes. At the time
of filing RP-2001-0035, GLPL believed that the financial statements prepared
in accordance with GAAP and the then UCC balances for tax purposes should
be carried forward to form the basis of the transmission utility for rate making
purposes.
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With respect to the March 12, 2008 transaction, GLPT believes it is abiding by
the APH, since that transaction occurred post 2000, and is accounting for the
transaction appropriately. GLPL incurred the tax consequence of the transfer
through Recapture of Capital Cost Allowance and Reductions in UCC values,
and no incremental cost (or benefit) related to the transaction was experienced
by the ratepayer.

(iv)  Itisthe Applicant’s position that the rates charged were and are appropriate, as
the rates are based on a rate base that was net book value at the time it was
initially approved by Board and was consistent with GAAP and the APH.

(v)  The comprehensive revaluation in 1996 was related to a fair market revaluation
that resulted from Brascan’s purchase of the majority interest in GLP Inc., the
company that effectively controlled the transmission assets at the time. The
comprehensive revaluation was consistent with and in accordance with
Canadian GAAP and was included in the audited financial statements of GLPL.

(vi)  No, please see (i) above.

(vii)  The applicant agrees that the rate approval prior to RP-2001-0035 was before
the 1996 transaction.

(viii) RP-2001-0035 was the first rate case before the Board.
(ix)  Not applicable.
(x)  Please see (i) above.

(xi)  Please see (i) above.
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20. Reference: S20.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 65
S20.(2) Response to SEC Interrogatory 11
S20.(3) Ontario Resource and Transmission Assessment Criteria,
Issue 5.0, issued by the Independent Electricity System
Operator (“IESO”)/Section 2.7.1 “The Bulk Power System
Contingency Criteria”/pages 7-8

Preamble

1) In Reference S20.(1) (Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 65), part (i), the
Applicant stated in part that:

“The Redevelopment project can be broken down into two sub projects:
(1) Equipment replacement and (2) Station re-configuration.

For the equipment replacement portion of the project, these costs are all
“non-discretionary” based on the fact that the drivers for replacement

are:
o Inadequate Voltage Ratings
o Inadequate Fault interrupting ratings™

2) In Reference S20.(2) (Response to SEC Interrogatory 11), Question (c), it is
stated that:

“Project need is described at Exhibit 2, Tab 1, Schedule 1 at pp. 14-109.
To date, through continuous monitoring, GLPT has identified the
following performance issues:

o Bus Connection Overheating - Infrared scans identified thermal
issues on a number of bus connections. Where possible,
connections were replaced. However, due to the existing bus
configuration limitations, access to certain connectors was not
possible and the connections have not been replaced. GLPT
continues to monitor this situation.

o Insulator Cracking - It has been identified that 63 station strain
bus insulators were cracked. 30 of the 63 were replaced. The
other 33 cannot be replaced due to the existing station
configuration limitations. (See Exhibit 2, Tab 1, Schedule 1, p.
17).

o Breaker Heating - It was identified that a connection between a
bushing and bus conductor on Circuit Breaker 492 was
overheating. The breaker was taken out of service, repaired and
placed back into service.”

3) In Reference S20.(3), page 8, second paragraph lists the seven (7) severe
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contingencies that the bulk system should withstand.

Requests

(i)

(i)

(iii)

In regard to Reference S20.(2) and Preamble (2), please give details on the
period of time needed and the effort level expected to replace the remaining bus
connections referred to.

In regard to Reference S20.(2) and Preamble (2), please give details on the
period of time needed and the effort level expected to replace the remaining 33
station strain bus insulators referred to.

To justify the replacement of 115 kV equipment/facilities at Third Line TS, did
GLPT’s staff or its consultants perform an assessment of the existing
configuration and the system elements (breakers, buses. ..etc) within it,
simulating the seven (7) contingencies as stated in Reference S20.(3), page 8,
second paragraph? If such a study was completed please provide it. If such a
study was not carried out, please explain why this was not undertaken? and how
long would it take to complete such a study?

Responses

(i)

It is GLPT’s intention to replace all bus connections through the
Redevelopment Project. The Redevelopment Project would replace the existing
115 kV section of Third Line TS, which includes all bus connections.
Regarding the possibility of replacing the remaining bus connections referred to
in Preamble (2) as a stand-alone project, the time and effort required would be
very significant and project feasibility would be a significant challenge. In
particular, such a stand-alone project, as a result of the current station
configuration, would require multiple total station outages. It is estimated that
up to five outages would be required, each lasting approximately 10-12 hours.
Each outage represents the estimated period of time needed to replace one
connector. Each such outage would result in the entire City of Sault Ste Marie,
as well as all connected industrial customers and generators, being without
power for the entire duration of each such outage. The feasibility of
coordinating and communicating such a series of lengthy outages would be an
extremely significant challenge. As the connectors in question are located mid-
way on the main bus and are of a ‘T’ compression configuration where, if the
heating is internal (which can only be determined by close examination), then,
if an outage could be coordinated, the entire main bus would also require
replacement. This work would involve the replacement of the conductor drop
and main bus connections and potentially the main bus, which would add
significant time, cost and complexity to the project. Due to these complexities
and the significant impact the project would have, GLPT does not believe that
the replacement of the bus connections alone is a prudent approach. The
Redevelopment Project would address the issues related to the bus connections
in a more efficient manner and with no impact to connected loads, while also
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addressing the myriad of other deficiencies associated with the station, as
described in the pre-filed evidence.

It is GLPT’s intention to replace all station strain bus insulators through the
Redevelopment Project. The Redevelopment Project would replace the existing
115 kV section of Third Line TS, which includes all station strain bus
insulators. Regarding the possibility of replacing the station strain bus
insulators referred to in Preamble (2) as a stand-alone project, for the same
reasons as described in response to 20(i), above, the time and effort required
would be very significant and project feasibility would be a significant
challenge. Because these insulators support a bus that crosses above both main
buses, a total station outage would be required for isolation. GLPT estimates
the time to replace one set of strain insulators (3 phases) is approximately 10 -
12 hours. As such, to replace all suspect insulators would require up to 11, 12-
hour station outages, if such outages could be coordinated. Due to these
complexities and the significant impact the project would have, GLPT does not
believe that the replacement of the station strain bus insulators alone would be a
prudent approach. The Redevelopment Project would address the issues related
to the these insulators in a more efficient manner and with no impact to
connected loads, while also addressing the myriad of other deficiencies
associated with the station, as described in the pre-filed evidence.

GLPT has not performed these studies or hired consultants to perform these
studies as it is GLPT’s understanding that it is the responsibility of the IESO to
do so. The IESO performs studies on the Bulk Power System annually as per
the following NERC standards: TPL-001, TPL-002, TPL-003 and TPL-004 and
in accordance with NPCC criteria A-02.

The IESO studies have identified high post contingency voltages present within
the GLPT system under certain conditions and has discussed these with GLPT.
GLPT has communicated to the IESO that the existing GLPT equipment cannot
withstand the post contingency voltages.

GLPT does not have a copy of any of the annual IESO studies that have been
completed.
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Reference:  S21.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 65
S21.(2) Ontario Resource and Transmission Assessment Criteria,
Issue 5.0, issued by the Independent Electricity System
Operator (“I1ESQO”)

Preamble
(1) In Reference S21.(1), the Applicant stated that

“For the station reconfiguration portion of the project, these costs are also
classified as ““non-discretionary’” as it falls under both the need to satisfy
obligations specified by Regulatory Organizations as well as addressing
equipment loading issues. Specifically, transmitters are required to satisfy all
applicable standards when modifying or building new facilities.”

Request

Q) In regard to Reference S21.(1) and Preamble (1), please indicate where in the
Report it is stated that the reconfiguration of an existing station has to comply
with the requirements in Reference S21.(2), which GLPT is citing as
justification for classing the “Station Reconfiguration” as “non-discretionary”.

Response

Q) It is GLPT’s belief that it is “Good Utility Practice” to follow IESO guidelines
when modifying or constructing new facilities, this includes following the
guidelines in the IESO Ontario Resource and Transmission Assessment Criteria
(ORTAC). Specific sections applicable to the Redevelopment Project are as
follows:

e 4.7.2 Loading Criteria, page 23, paragraph 3 states that “circuit breakers,
current transformers, disconnect switches, buses and all other system
elements must not be restrictive.” The existing overhead cross-bus at
Third Line TS is underrated and is therefore restrictive.

e B.2 - Analysis of System Connections section, page B-2, states that the
key factors that must be considered when evaluating a switching or
transformer station include:

o Extendibility- The design should allow for forecast need for
future extensions if practical. The current configuration of the
115 kV portion of Third Line TS does not allow for any future
extensions.

0 Maintainability - The design must take into account the
practicalities of maintaining the substation and associated
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circuits. It should allow for elements to be taken out of service
for maintenance without negatively impacting security and
quality of supply. The current configuration of the 115 kV
portion of Third Line TS does not allow for maintenance of any
equipment associated with the overhead cross bus. Moreover,
for certain elements of the station to be taken out of service,
there would be a negative impact on security and quality of

supply.

0 Operational Flexibility - The physical layout of individual
circuits and groups of circuits must permit the required operation
of the IESO-controlled grid. The current physical configuration
of the 115 kV portion of Third Line TS does not provide
appropriate operational flexibility.

e B.3 General Requirements for Station Layouts explains:

0 “This section identifies general requirements for all station
layouts based on good utility practice and operational efficiency.
Acceptable system performance will dictate the acceptability of
any proposed layout. This section provides the electrical single
line diagram and does not reflect physical layouts. See section
B.4 for information on physical layout.”

e B.3.3 - Maximum Beakers section, page B-4:

o *“Station layout should be such that a maximum of 6 High
Voltage (500kV, 230kV and 115kV) and up to 2 capacitor or 2
Low Voltage breakers are needed to trip following any fault
(operation of the capacitor breaker does not involve interruption
of fault current).”

0 GLPT staff considered the current configuration of the 115 kV
portion of Third Line TS in light of this requirement and found
that, should a fault occur on the North bus, circuit breakers 435,
455, 473, 492, 512, 515 and 495 (all 115 kV High Voltage
circuit breakers) would trip. This would result in a total of 7
breakers operating. Similarly, should a fault occur on the South
Bus, circuit breakers 445, 465, 462, 485, 482, 505 and 502 would
trip. This is not compliant with the ORTAC report.
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Reference:  S22.(1) Exh. 2/Tab 1/Sch. 1/p. 15/lines 1-3
S22.(2) Response to SEC Interrogatory 11
S22.(3) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 63, Exhibit 10/
Tab 1/Sch 2/Appendix 63(i), the Wardrop Report
S22.(4) Exh 2/Tab 1/Sch. 1/p. 23/lines 5-10
S22.(5) Ontario Resource and Transmission Assessment Criteria,

1)

)

©)

(4)

Issue 5.0, issued by the Independent Electricity System
Operator (“IESO”)

Preamble

In Reference S22.(1), the Applicant stated that:

“The circuits, breakers, disconnect switches, bus components
(insulators), PTs and protection equipment (relays) are at the end of
their typical useful life and are therefore in need of replacement.

In Reference S22.(2) (Response to SEC Interrogatory 11), Question (d), the
Applicant stated that:

“It is GLPT’s intention to decommission the existing portion of the 115
kV section of the station as the assets are taken out of service. Where
possible, GLPT intends to redeploy assets that are removed from
service. “

In Reference S22.(3) (The Wardrop report), in the Table on page 25 of 36, the
item titled “major matl’s — diameter breakers”, it shows for Option 2,
$2,700,000 and for Option 5, $3,060,000

In Reference S22.(4), GLPT stated that:

*““Station Expandability - The proposed design provides sufficient space
within the station to permit future growth at minimal incremental cost,
relative to current project costs. This would relate to any additional 115
kV circuits or a third autotransformer, should the need arise. For
example, this would allow the station to accommodate growth arising
from the need to connect renewable energy generation facilities.”

Requests

(i)

(i)

In regard to References S22.(1) and S22.(2) and the corresponding Preambles
(1) and (2), please clarify whether or not GLPT’s intention is to redeploy all 15
breakers it now has regardless of the Option that would be implemented?

With regard to Reference S22.(3), and Preamble (3), please clarify whether the
cost estimate shown in page 25 under the item titled “major matl’s — diameter
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breakers” include the cost of breakers in the case of Option 2 and that of

Option 5.

In Reference S22.(3), the layout for Option 2 (on page 9) show that for
additions of four new positions, 5 new breakers are needed, and for Option 5
(on page 12) additions of four new positions, 9 new breakers are needed. Given
the fact the GLPT stated in Reference S22.(4) that expandability is expected,
please provide the cost data by completing the Table below:

Scenario

Option 2
Total Station Cost
(for Scenario (11), add
cost of 5 new
breakers)
$

Option 5
Total Station Cost
(for Scenario (11) add
cost of 9 new
breakers)
$

(1) Status Quo - assume the existing
15 breakers would be replaced
with new breakers

(1) Expansion - assume additional
breakers to accommodate 4 New
Positions

Given that the in Reference S22.(5), the IESO report recommends a station
layout reflecting (Breaker and a Third Configuration - similar to Option 2), and
that GLPT is proposing Option 5 reflecting (Breaker and a Half
Configuration), please provide quantitative analysis to show the cost/benefit
analysis for each of the two scenarios and the associated costs (which GLPT
will be providing) as outlined in Question (iii) above.

Should the Board ends up classifying this project in total or in part as
“Discretionary”, how long would it take the Applicant to provide evidence
based on economic evaluation of quantitative benefits versus costs to support
justification for the Redevelopment Project.

Responses

(i)

(i)

GLPT will not deploy any of its 14 bulk oil breakers, which are insufficiently
rated for continued use, as explained in Exhibit 2, Tab 1, Schedule 1-
Equipment Age and page 16 of 81 — Equipment Rating. GLPT will re-deploy
one SF-6 breaker that currently has adequate fault interrupting ratings as well as

adequate voltage ratings.

The referenced cost estimate includes the purchase of new breakers.
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GLPT has not stated that expansion is expected. Reference S22. (4) comments
that the proposed design would permit future growth, but does not go so far as
to state that such future growth is expected at this time. The new station will be
designed in accordance with the IESO Ontario Resource and Transmission
Assessment Criteria (ORTAC), Appendix B, section B.2 — Analysis of System
Connections, bullet two — Extendibility. As such, the new station will allow for
the possibility of future extensions, if necessary and practical. The ability to
accommodate potential future extensions is a function of station configuration
and is not associated with any incremental costs. As such, ratepayers are not
being asked to incur any present costs associated with future extendibility. No
future extensions are being proposed as part of the Redevelopment Project.
Accordingly, no estimates have been developed.

Scenario

Option 2
Total Station Cost
(for Scenario (1), add
cost of 5 new
breakers)

Option 5
Total Station Cost
(for Scenario (I1) add
cost of 9 new
breakers)

(1) Status Quo -
assume the existing
15 breakers would be
replaced with new
breakers

$20,202,500 (includes 25%
contingency per Wardrop
Report, p. 20)

$21,596,250 (includes 25%
contingency per Wardrop
Report, p. 20)

(1) Expansion -
assume additional
breakers to
accommodate 4 New
Positions

No estimates have been
developed for cost of
potential future breakers

No estimates have been
developed for cost of
potential future breakers

GLPT would like to clarify that there are two basic options available. The first
basic option is to do-nothing. This is reflected by Option 1 in the Wardrop
Report, which was eliminated from further consideration as it was found to
provide an inadequate resolution to the problems being addressed. The second
basic option is to do something. Options 2-5 in the Wardrop Report all fall
within this category. Options 2-5 are all similar in their configuration and cost.
Moreover, each of Options 2-5 meet IESO requirements as set out in the
ORTAC report. The proposed breaker and a half configuration provides all of
the benefits of the breaker and a third configuration, as well as additional
benefits. With respect to the request for quantitative cost/benefit analysis, given
the preliminary nature of the cost estimates and the 25% contingency included
within the estimates, the approximate $1.4 million difference between the cost
estimates for Options 2 and 5 is not a prudent basis for distinguishing between
the two options. Rather, GLPT selected Option 5, on the recommendations
made by Wardrop, on the basis that this option will provide the greatest benefit.
The benefits of Option 5 relative to the benefits of Option 2 are described
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beginning on p. 27 of Exhibit 2, Tab 1, Schedule 1 of the pre-filed evidence.

GLPT reiterates its submission that this is a non-discretionary project for the
reasons set out in its pre-filed evidence at Exhibit 2, Tab 1, Schedule 1. Among
the reasons for this classification that have been provided are as follows:

e The only feasible solution to the significant worker safety issues associated
with the 115 kV bus is the Redevelopment Project;

e The only reasonable and safe alternative that would avoid significant supply
interruptions to the City of Sault Ste Marie and directly connected loads is
the Redevelopment Project;

o All major existing equipment, including disconnect switches, have
inadequate voltage ratings and are therefore in need of replacement;

e GLPT is obligated to meet the requirements set out in the Transmission
System Code. Section 6.1.1 of the Code requires a transmitter to design and
construct new or modified connection facilities in accordance with all
applicable standards and instruments referred to in section 5.1.2 of the
Code. Section 5.1.2 of the Code identifies the following standards and
instruments: the Code, the transmitter’s licence, its operating agreement
with the IESO, the Market Rules, all connection agreements, good utility
practice, the standards of all applicable reliability organizations and any
applicable law. Options 2-5 described in the Wardrop Report would enable
GLPT to meet the standards of good utility practice and the standards of
applicable reliability organizations. As noted, GLPT believes that Option 5
is the preferred option.

GLPT estimates that it may take at least 3 months to develop an economic
evaluation of quantitative benefits versus costs to support justification for the
Redevelopment Project. This estimate would be in addition to the time needed
to identify and retain a suitably qualified third party consultant to provide such
evaluation services.
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Reference:  S23.(1) Exh. 5/Tab 1/Sch. 1 - Cost of Capital
S23.(2) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 92
S23.(3) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 93
S23.(4) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 94
S23.(5) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 95

Preamble

1) In Reference S23.(1), GLPT states that it is proposing a deemed capital

)

3)

structure of 57.5% debt and 42.5% equity for the 2010 test year.

In Reference S23.(2), GLPT states that it “has updated its debt/equity structure
to a structure of 55/45, in accordance with its actual capital structure, which
was also approved for the transmission company in EB-2005-0241.” It has
provided similar statements in Reference S23.(4), and has used the 55% debt
and 45% in the tables shown in Reference S23.(2) and in the filed Revenue
Requirement Work Form spreadsheets filed in Reference S23.(5).

In Reference S23.(3), GLPT shows a pro forma “actual” 2010 capital structure
of 56.61 % debt and 43.39% equity.

Requests

(i)

(i)

Please provide further explanation of why GLPT has changed its proposed
capital structure for setting the 2010 revenue requirement and rates to 55%
debt and 45% equity.

If the expected pro forma “actual” structure is expected to be 56.61 % and
43.39% as shown in Reference S23.(3), why is GLPT now proposing a 55%
debt and 45% equity deemed capital structure in Reference S23.(2) and
S23.(4)?

Responses

(i)

The Board’s Cost of Capital Report (EB-2009-0084) indicates on page 50 that a
reassessment of a transmitter’s capital structure will only be undertaken in the
event of a significant change in the company’s business and/or financial risk.
Given there has not been a significant change in the company’s business and/or
financial risk, there is no reason to reassess GLPT’s capital structure at this
time.

Because GLPT’s evidence was filed prior to the release of the Board’s Report,
GLPT had indicated its intention to transition to a 60/40 capital structure in
accordance with its interpretation of the Board’s December 2006 Report on
Cost of Capital. However, in light of the Board’s more recent Report, GLPT
now requests that it maintain its capital structure of 55/45, as approved in EB-
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2005-0241. As indicated above, there has not been a significant change in the
company’s business and/or financial risk. Therefore, there are no identifiable
reasons to reassess the capital structure at this time.

Please refer to Board Staff Supplementary Interrogatory S23 (i). GLPT is not
proposing to change its current Board Approved capital structure of 55% debt
and 45% equity as there has not been a significant change in the company’s
business and/or financial risk.
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24, Reference:  S24.(1) Exh. 5/Tab 1/Sch. 1 - Cost of Capital

S24.(2) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 93

S24.(3) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 94

S24.(4) Excerpt from pages 41-42 of the Reply Submissions of

Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro Inc., February 10, 2010, in its
2010 Distribution Rates application being considered
under Board File No. EB-2009-0267

Preamble
1) In Reference S24.(2) part (ii), GLPT states that:

Neither GLPT nor its predecessor GLPL has had a short-term debt
component in its rate base or revenue requirement for rate- setting
purposes. GLPT has not been in front of the Board for rate-setting
purposes since 2005, which is prior to the publishing of the Report of
the Board on Cost of Capital and 2nd Generation Incentive Regulation
for Ontario’s Electricity Distributors on December 20, 2006. This
report was GLPT’s first experience with a short-term debt component of
rate base.

2 In Reference S24.(4), Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro Inc. states:

81. Itis awell understood principle of corporate finance that firms
need both a long-term (or permanent) investment in working capital
and a short-term or cyclical one. The permanent working capital
investment provides an ongoing positive net working capital position,
that is, a level of current assets that exceeds current liabilities. This
allows KW Hydro to operate with a comfortable financial margin and
minimizes the risk of being unable to pay its employees, vendors,
lenders, or the government (for taxes). To have a continuous positive
net working capital, a company must finance part of its working capital
on a long-term basis.

82.  Beyond this permanent working capital investment, KW Hydro
also needs seasonal or cyclical working capital. Since the demand for
power and KW Hydro ‘s controllable expenses vary over the course of a
year, KW Hydro needs to finance these costs to prepare for their peak
sales period and accounts receivable until cash is collected. KW Hydro
acknowledges that cyclical working capital can sometimes be financed
by short-term debt since the seasonal build-up of assets to address
seasonal demand will be reduced and converted to cash to repay
borrowed funds within a short predictable period. However, KW Hydro
does not accept the suggestion that the cyclical portion of working
capital should be used as a proxy for the short-term debt applicable to a
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utility’s capitalization structure. [Emphasis added.]

Requests

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Please confirm GLPT’s view that its rate base, for rate-setting purposes
consists of net fixed assets and an allowance for cash working capital.

Please confirm GLPT’s understanding of whether short-term debt was taken
into account in the setting of electricity distribution and transmission rates
when GLPT had its rates set under Board File No. EB-2005-0241.

Please provide GLPT’s view on Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro’s submission that
working capital is composed of both long-term (or permanent) and short-term
(or cyclical) components which are funded, or can be funded, respectively by
longer-term and short-term debt financing. Please explain your response.

GLPT’s proposal amounts to funding its rate base, including the allowance for
cash working capital, through equity and long-term debt only. Please explain in
detail how only using longer-term capitalization (equity and long-term) is
efficient for financing cyclical or short-term working capital requirements.

Given that the Board has adopted a short-term debt component of rate base for
setting the revenue requirement and rates for electricity transmission and
distribution sector, as documented in the December 20, 2006 Report of the
Board on Cost of Capital and 2nd Generation Incentive Regulation for
Ontario’s Electricity Distributors, and continued in the December 11, 2009
Report of the Board on Cost of Capital for Ontario’s Regulated Utilities, to
reflect, in part short-term funding of at least part of the working capital
allowance, should not the Board deem a portion of GLPT’s rate base, for rate-
setting purposes, as funded by short-term debt.

If the Board were to deem a portion of rate base as being funded by short-term
debt, please provide, with reasons and support, GLPT’s estimates of what
should be the short-term debt capitalization and the short-term debt rate.

Responses

(i)
(i)

(iii)

Confirmed.

GLPT is not aware of short-term debt being incorporated in the setting of any
electricity rates when GLPT had its rates set under Board File No. EB-2005-
0241.

GLPT agrees with the quoted portion of the Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro
submission, as stated in Preamble (2), subject to the circumstances described in
24(iv) below.
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GLPT’s working capital requirements are relatively small in comparison to
many other utilities. This is demonstrated by the working capital allowance
sought by GLPT in this rate application. The Board’s standard calculation of a
utility’s working capital allowance is 15% of controllable expenses. For GLPT,
this would equate to a working capital allowance of approximately $1.7M.
However, GLPT is only seeking a working capital allowance of approximately
$0.4M, which is only 3.6% of its controllable expenses.

Given that the total working capital allowance sought is only $0.4M (0.2% of
GLPT’s total rate base of $209M), of which at least a portion is funded by long-
term debt, GLPT’s view is that deeming a portion of this allowance as cyclical
or short-term would produce a result that is not materially different from the
result of using the long-term debt rate for all working capital requirements.

As a result, to simplify the calculation and allow for regulatory efficiency,
GLPT has not included a short-term debt provision in its cost of capital
calculation.

Given that the total working capital allowance sought by GLPT in this
application is only $0.4M (0.2% of GLPT’s total rate base of $209M), of which
at least a portion is funded by long-term debt, GLPT’s view is that deeming a
portion of this allowance as cyclical or short-term would produce a result that is
not materially different from the result of using the long-term debt rate for all
working capital requirements.

As a result, to simplify the calculation and allow for regulatory efficiency,
GLPT has not included a short-term debt provision in its cost of capital
calculation.

If the Board were to deem a portion of rate base as being funded by short-term
debt, GLPT would submit that for simplicity, the portion of rate base be equal
to one half of the working capital allowance sought in the application. This
would represent the cyclical or short-term working capital requirements of
GLPT, which would attract the short-term debt rate. Based on the working
capital allowance sought in the application, this would equate to a short-term
debt capitalization of approximately $200,000.

The appropriate short-term debt rate would be the short-term debt rate
calculated by the Board and released annually for each rate year (along with the
other cost of capital parameters). Per the Board’s letter dated February 24,
2010, the rate would be 2.07%.
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S25.(1) Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 97,(iv)

In Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 97,(iv), GLPT responded by stating that:

As demonstrated in the table in GLPT’s response to Board Staff Interrogatory
96 (i), there is very little year-over-year variation in the actual charge
determinants of the three pools. The one area where a five year average would
have produced an inaccurate figure is in the Transformation Connection pool.
In this case, GLPT used a three year average which eliminates the older
information that is based on peak load information collected under different
circumstances. Therefore, it is GLPT’s opinion that the simple average method
employed by GLPT is the ““best fit technique. **

(2) Board staff is of the view that performing regression analysis on the monthly data
provided by GLPT (see Response to Board Staff Interrogatory 97,(i) using the
monthly data in the “live MS-Excel spreadsheet”) is important in order to compare
the results proposed by GLPT with the results of a methodology used in various
applications including load forecasting.

Requests

(i)

Please provide the results of regression analysis to produce forecasts for the year
2010 performed as follows:

For Network and Line Connection

(a)

(b)

(©)

for the Network Pool and the Line Connection Pool, please use the “66
monthly demand data”* provided by GLPT in its Response to Board
Staff Interrogatory 97,(i), to perform linear regression which would
produce a single forecasted monthly demand for the Network Pool and
another single forecasted monthly demand for the Line Connection
Pool. Also provide for the two regressions performed, the standard
adequacy test results, such as the “R-Square” results.. .etc.

For each of the two monthly data sets (a Network set and a Line
Connection set), repeat the exercise in (a) except this time please
attempt non-linear regression techniques and provide for each non-
linear model tested the “model’s standard adequacy results” such as the
“R-Square”...etc.

Compare the non-linear models’ results, from (b) above, with

2 The monthly demand data covers 6 months of 2004, 12 months for each of the following 5 years (2005 to 2009).
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results produced in (a) and select the best fit model. Use the
monthly result from the best fit model to produce an annual
demand?® for each of the two pools.

For Transformation Connection

(d) For the Transformation Connection Pool please use the “36
monthly demand data™ provided by GLPT in its Response to Board
Staff Interrogatory 97,(i), and perform a linear regression which would
produce a single forecasted monthly demand for the Transformation
Connection Pool. Also provide the standard adequacy test results, of
the model such as the “R-Square” results. ..etc.

(e) Repeat the exercise in (d) except please attempt non-linear regression
techniques and provide for each non-linear model tested the “model’s
adequacy results” such as the “R-Square”...etc.

()] Compare the non-linear models’ results, from (e) above, with
results produced in (d) and select the best fit model. Use the
monthly result from the best fit model to produce an annual
demand?® for the Transformation Connection Pool.

Responses
Please see Appendix 25.

® The monthly demand multiplied by 12 would produce the annual demand.

* The monthly demand data for the years 2007, 2008 and 2009. Older data does not reflect the current situation due
to sale of Transformation assets to a customer as indicated in the pre-filed evidence.

® The monthly demand multiplied by 12 would produce the annual demand.
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Financial Statements

GREAT LAKES POWER LIMITED TRANSMISSION DIVISION
December 31, 2006
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BCE Place

181 Bay Street

Suite 1400

Toronto ON M5J 2V1
Canada

Tel: (416) 601-6150
Fax: (416) 601-6151
www.deloitte.ca

Auditors’ Report

To the Directors of
Great Lakes Power Limited

We have audited the balance sheet of Great Lakes Power Limited Transmission Division (the “Division”) as
at December 31, 2006 and the statements of capital account, income, and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Division’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

the Division as at December 31, 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Nbp,\r\'tb_. < ook LR

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, Ontario
March 22, 2007

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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GREAT LAKES POWER LIMITED TRANSMISSION DIVISION
BALANCE SHEET
As at December 31
thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2006 2005
Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 4,937 $ 1,960
Accounts receivable 3,512 5,595
Due from related parties 3 8,500 6,505
Prepaid expenses and other 157 109
Taxes receivable - 616
Current portion of regulatory asset 6 1,649 1,649
18,755 16,434
Regulatory asset 6 3,299 4,948
Property, plant and equipment 4 195,954 182,182
$ 218,008 $ 203,564
Liabilities and Capital Account
Current liabilities
Accounts and other payables $ 5,159 $ 10,356
Taxes payable 4,501 -
Due to related parties 3 6,173 1,086
15,833 11,442
Future income taxes 9 21,513 23,236
First mortgage bonds 5 115,750 115,750
153,096 150,428
Capital account 64,912 53,136
$ 218,008 $ 203,564

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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GREAT LAKES POWER LIMITED TRANSMISSION DIVISION
STATEMENT OF CAPITAL ACCOUNT
Year ended December 31
thousands of CDN dollars 2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year $ 53,136 $ 44,154
Net income 11,776 8,982
Balance, end of year $ 64,912 $ 53,136

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Year ended December 31
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thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2006 2005
Revenues 34,686 28,909
Expenses
Operating and administrative 4,277 4,558
Maintenance 1,475 968
Interest 8 6,555 2,565
Depreciation 5,530 4,425
Taxes, other than income taxes 482 519
18,319 13,035
Net operating income 16,367 15,874
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 6 (1,436) (1,671)
Other income 179 90
Net income before income taxes 15,110 14,293
Income taxes - current 9 5,057 5,413
Income taxes - future 9 (1,723) (102)
Net income 11,776 8,982

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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GREAT LAKES POWER LIMITED TRANSMISSION DIVISION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended December 31
thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2006 2005
Operating activities
Net income 11,776 $ 8,982
Items not affecting cash
Depreciation 5,530 4,425
Future income taxes (1,723) (102)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 6 1,436 1,671
Net change in non-cash working capital 7 7,042 7,576
24,061 22,552
Investing activities
Due from related parties (1,995) (6,405)
Proceeds on disposition of property, plant and equipment 250 -
Additions to property, plant and equipment (19,339) (44,079)
(21,084) (50,484)
Financing Activities
Due to related parties - 27,000
- 27,000
Increase (decrease) in cash 2,977 (932)
Cash, beginning of year 1,960 2,892
Cash, end of year 4,937 $ 1,960

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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December 31, 2006
(in thousands of CDN dollars)

1. NATURE AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles on the basis that the Transmission Division (the “Division”) of Great Lakes
Power Limited (“GLPL”) operates as a separate legal entity. The Division is engaged in the
transmission of electricity to the area adjacent to Sault Ste. Marie, Canada and is subject to the
regulations of the Ontario Energy Board (the “OEB™). These divisional financial statements do not
include all of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of GLPL. Consolidated financial
statements of GLPL have been prepared for issuance to the shareholders and have been reported
on by its auditors.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements:

(@)  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, including costs of acquisition incurred by

the Division and its parent, less accumulated depreciation. The cost of the property, plant
and equipment is depreciated over the estimated service lives of the assets as follows:

Method Rate
Buildings Straight-line 40 years
Transmission stations, towers and related fixtures Straight-line 25 to 40 years
Equipment Straight-line 5 to 40 years

Construction work in progress is not depreciated until the assets are put into service.
(b)  Impairment of long-lived assets

The Division reviews long-lived assets for other than temporary impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted
cash flows attributable to the assets, as compared to the carrying value of the assets. Should
an asset be considered to be impaired, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal
to the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value.

(c) Capitalization of interest

Interest on funds used in construction is charged to construction work in progress at the
prescribed rate of return applicable to the rate base.
(d) Revenue recognition

The Division recognizes revenue on an accrual basis, when electricity is wheeled, at the
regulated rate established by the OEB.
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December 31, 2006
(in thousands of CDN dollars)

(e) [Income taxes

The Division uses the asset and liability method in accounting for income taxes. Under this
method, future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between
the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and are measured using the
enacted, or substantively enacted, tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the
differences are expected to reverse, taking into account the organization of the Division’s
financial affairs and its impact on taxable income and tax losses.

(f)  Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. During the years presented, management has made a
number of estimates and valuation assumptions including accruals, depreciation and those
relevant to the defined benefit pension plan. Estimates are based on historical experience,
current trends and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(9) Rate Regulation

On January 1, 2005, the Division adopted CICA Handbook Accounting Guideline 19,
Disclosure by Entities Subject to Rate Regulation. The Division is regulated by the OEB.
Accounting standards recognize that rate regulation can create economic benefits and
obligations, which are reported in the financial statements as regulatory assets and liabilities.
When the regulation provides assurance that incurred costs will be recovered in the future,
the Division may defer these costs and report them as a regulatory asset. If current recovery
is provided for costs expected to be incurred in the future, the Division reports a regulatory
liability. Also, if the regulation provides for lesser or greater planned revenue to be received
or returned by the Division through future rates, the Division recognizes and reports a
regulatory asset or liability, respectively. The measurement of such regulatory assets and
liabilities are subject to certain estimates and assumptions, including assumptions made in
the interpretation of the regulation.

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Division has provided advances to and received advances from entities under common
control in the normal course of operations. The Division has also provided advances to and
received advances from other divisions of GLPL. These advances are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and due on demand.

(b) In the normal course of operations, Riskcorp Inc., an insurance broker related through
common control, entered into transactions with GLPL to provide insurance. These
transactions have been measured at exchange value. The total cost allocated to the Division
in 2006 for these services was $117 (2005 — $124) and no amount remains outstanding at
year end (2005 - $nil).

(c) As aresult, the following balances are receivable (payable) at December 31:



EB-2009-0408

Exhibit 11
Tab 1
GREAT LAKES POWER LIMITED TRANSMISSION DIVISION e 261
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 9of 12
December 31, 2006
(in thousands of CDN dollars)
2006 2005
Due from related parties
Advances to other divisions of GLPL $ 8,500 $ 6,505
Due to related parties
Advances from other divisions of GLPL $ (5,892) $ (1,081)
Advances from entities under common control (281) (5)
$ (6,173) $  (1,086)
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2006 2005
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value Value
Land $ 544 $ - $ 544 $ 544
Buildings 15,466 4,475 10,991 11,318
Transmission stations, towers and
related fixtures 231,568 49,342 182,226 147,349
Equipment - - - 350
Construction work in progress 2,193 - 2,193 22,621
$ 249,771 $ 53,817 $ 195,954 $ 182,182

Cost and accumulated depreciation as at December 31, 2005 were $230,881 and $48,699,
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment were comprehensively revalued to fair value in 1996. At December
31, 2006, the fair value adjustment and the related accumulated depreciation were $78,941 and
$19,888, respectively (2005 - $78,941 and $17,915, respectively).

5. FIRST MORTGAGE BONDS

2006 2005
Series 1 First Mortgage Bonds $ 384,000 $ 384,000
Subordinated First Mortgage Bonds 115,000 115,000

$ 499,000 $ 499,000

The Series 1 First Mortgage Bonds (“Series 1 Bonds”) bear interest at the rate of 6.60%. Semi-
annual payments of interest only are due and payable on June and December 16 each year until
and including June 16, 2013. Equal blended semi-annual payments of principal and interest on the
Series 1 Bonds will commence on December 16, 2013 and will continue until and including June 16,
2023. The Series 1 Bonds will not be fully amortized by their maturity date. The remaining principal
balance of the Series 1 Bonds will be fully due on June 16, 2023.

The Subordinated First Mortgage Bonds bear interest at the rate of 7.80%, payable on June and
December 16 each year, and are due on June 16, 2023.

The Series 1 First Mortgage Bonds and the Subordinated First Mortgage Bonds are both secured by
a charge on generation and transmission present and future real property assets of GLPL. The fair
market value of the First Mortgage Bonds is $576,262 (2005 - $526,713) based on current market
prices for debt with similar terms.



EB-2009-0408

Exhibit 11

Tab 1
GREAT LAKES POWER LIMITED TRANSMISSION DIVISION i;ﬁiﬂ‘éﬁi%m
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 10 of 12

December 31, 2006
(in thousands of CDN dollars)

A total of $115,750 of the Series 1 Bonds (2005 - $115,750) has been allocated to the Division.
Interest on the allocated Bonds is expensed in accordance with the interest rate prescribed by
regulation. In 2006, the interest rate was 6.6% (2005 — 6.6%).

EFFECT OF RATE REGULATION

The Division recorded the following regulatory asset as at December 31, 2006:

2006 2005
Regulatory assets
Deferred loss on disposal of transmission assets $ 4,948 $ 6,597
Less: current portion (1,649) (1,649)
Long-term portion $ 3,299 $ 4,948

The Division operates in accordance with the regulations of the OEB. Regulatory assets and
liabilities represent certain revenues earned or costs incurred in the current year or in prior years
that have been or are expected to be recovered from customers upon approval from the OEB. In
the absence of rate regulation, these balances would have been recorded as revenues or expenses
in the statement of income.

Deferred loss on disposal of transmission assets

As prescribed by regulatory order, gains or losses on disposal of assets are recorded as a
regulatory asset or liability subject to approval by the OEB. For the year ended December 31, 2005,
the Division incurred a loss on disposal of transmission assets of $8,246. This regulatory asset is
recovered over a period of five years, which commenced on April 1, 2005. During 2006, the
Division recovered $1,649 (2005 - $1,649) of the deferred loss. As the deferred loss on disposal of
transmission assets has been approved by the OEB for recovery, there is no risk of non-collection
of this balance.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2006 2005
Accounts receivable $ 2,083 $ (3,310)
Prepaid expenses and other (48) 375
Due to related parties 5,087 169
Taxes receivable / payable 5,117 5,276
Accounts and other payables (5,197) 5,066

$ 7,042 $ 7,576

Non-cash activities for the year ended December 31 include:

2006 2005
Regulatory asset recorded as a result of loss on disposal
of transmission assets (note 7) $ - $ 8,246
Due to related parties settled through the allocation of
First Mortgage Bonds $ - $ 27,000

Taxes payable settled through the allocation of First
Mortgage Bonds $ - $ 20,000
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10.

INTEREST AND FINANCING FEES

The net interest and financing fees recorded in the financial statements as at December 31 are
comprised as follows:

2006 2005

Interest expense incurred $ 7,659 $ 4,687
Capitalized interest (1,104) (2,122)
$ 6,555 $ 2,565

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes in the statements of income represents an effective tax rate
different than the Canadian statutory rate of 36% (2005 — 36%0). The differences are as follows:

2006 2005
Net income before income taxes $ 15,110 $ 14,293
Computed income tax recovery at Canadian statutory rate 5,440 5,144
Increase resulting from:
Large corporation tax - 205
Impact of future rate change on future income tax liability (2,007) -
Other (99) (38)
Income tax provision $ 3,334 $ 5,311
Future income tax liabilities
CCA in excess of book depreciation $ 21,598 $ 23,163
Other (85) 73
$ 21,513 $ 23,236

The Division’s future income tax liability of $21,513 (2005 — $23,236) is comprised principally of
temporary differences relating to the CCA in excess of book depreciation. At December 31, 2006,
the Division did not have any unused capital losses (2005 — $nil).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Interest rate risk

The Division’s long-term debt bears interest at a rate set periodically by the OEB. Consequently,
there is cash flow exposure.

(b) Fair value

The carrying amounts in the balance sheet of accounts receivable and accounts and other payables
approximate their fair values, reflecting their short maturities.

The fair value of the related party balances is not determinable by management due to the related
party nature of these balances.
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11.

12.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential for a counterparty to default on its contractual obligations and
is limited to those contracts where the Division would incur a loss in replacing the defaulted
transaction. The Division’s financial instruments that are potentially exposed to credit risks are
accounts receivable. The Division actively manages its exposure to credit risk by assessing the
ability of counterparties to fulfill their obligations under the related contracts prior to entering into
such contracts, and continually monitors these exposures.

COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

In the normal course of operations, the Division executes agreements that provide for
indemnification and guarantees to third parties in transactions such as debt issuances. The nature
of substantially all of the indemnification undertakings prevents the Division from making a
reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount the Division could be required to pay third
parties as the agreements do not specify a maximum amount and the amounts are dependent
upon the outcome of future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be
determined at this time. Historically, the Division has not made significant payments under such
indemnification agreements.

On behalf of GLPL, Brookfield Power Corporation obtained a letter of credit totaling $19,008 (2005 -
$19,008) to cover nine months of interest payments on the Series 1 First Mortgage Bonds. No
amount has been drawn against this letter of credit.

In the normal course of operations, the Division has committed as at December 31, 2006 to spend
approximately $5,500 (2005 - $12,700) on capital projects in future years.

The Division may, from time to time, be involved in legal proceedings, claims, and litigation that
arise in the ordinary course of business which the Division believes would not reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Division.

The Division has asset retirement obligations associated with its transmission lines. The retirement
date for these lines cannot be reasonably estimated and therefore the fair value of the associated
liability cannot be determined at this time. As a result, no liability has been accrued in these
financial statements.

NEW FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS STANDARDS

On January 27, 2005, the CICA issued three new accounting standards: Handbook Section 1530,
Comprehensive Income, Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments — Recognition and
Measurement, and Handbook Section 3865, Hedges. These standards were effective January 1,
2007. The impact of implementing these new standards is not reflected in these financial
statements.

10
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Great Lakes Power Transmission Inc.
2008 Allocation of Taxable Income from GLPT LP
Great Lakes Power Transmission LP ("GLPT") - net income before taxes for the year ending December 31, 2008 11,565,000
Less 2008 income before asset sale March 12, 2008 3,149,080)
8,415,920
Adjustments to arrive at taxable income:
Add: :
Depreciation 5,274,183
Loss on disposal 1,421,194
Deduct:
Capital cost allowance (11,345,613)
Capitalized interest (272,480)
Legal fees (573,797)
(5,496,513)
Total GLPT net income for tax purposes for the period March 13, 2008 to December 31, 2008 2,919,407
GLPT Inc.'s share of GLPT partnership income 0.01%
292

General partner's share of GLPT 2008 taxable income



Findings:

Network demand had a relatively small but statistically significant negative linear trend component.
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Both line connection demand and transformation connection demand had very small and statistically

insignificant linear trend components. In all three cases, non-linear trend components were found to be

statistically insignificant. Note that the trend components were analyzed after the demands had been

deseasonalized as all three demand series exhibited seasonality, particularly the network and

transformation connection demand series. Using the linear trend model for network demand and

averages for the line connection and transformation connection demands along with their respective

seasonal components, the recommended forecasts are as follows:

Network Line | Transformation

Demand Connection Connection
Year (kw) | Demand (kw) Demand (kw)
2010 3,870,613 2,950,531 1,033,728
2011 3,826,668 2,950,531 1,033,728
2012 3,782,723 2,950,531 1,033,728
2013 3,738,778 2,950,531 1,033,728
2104 3,694,833 2,950,531 1,033,728

It should be noted that projecting trend components into the future is riskier the farther into the future

one goes and the forecasts are less reliable.

Details:

Network:

A plot of the demand data showed significant seasonality.

450,000
400,000 - -
350,000 - *»
300,000 4®
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000

Demand

20

30 40

50

60

70




EB-2009-0408
Exhibit 11

Tab 1
Schedule 2
Appendix 25
20f 16

The data were deseasonalized following a standard procedure. A centered 13-month moving average

was calculated (with the 1% and 13" months counted half) for each month and the monthly demand was

divided by its centered moving average. An average monthly ratio was then computed for each of the

12 months and these ratios were scaled to average one. These scaled ratios formed the following

monthly indices.

Month Index
1 1.151595
2 1.114340
3 1.087368
4 0.992366
5 0.868731
6 0.925185
7 0.925394
8 0.924495
9 0.904323
10 0.955399
11 1.051079
12 1.099726

Each month’s demand was then divided by its monthly index to deseasonalize the data. The resulting

demand more clearly shows a trend, although it is small.
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A linear regression identified the trend component as - 305.17 kw per month (the intercept representing

the deseasonalized monthly demand prior to the first of the 66 months in the data set was 344,647 kw).

The r-squared was .1480 and the p-value for testing whether the linear trend component was

significantly different from 0 was .0014 (below .05 is significant and below .01 is highly significant). This

model (along with the monthly indices) was used to make the forecasts reported in the findings section.
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Note that if the average were used with no trend component, the forecast would be 4,013,078 kw each

year.

Although there is no visible curvature to the trend (the trend itself is just barely visible) two non-linear
models were tried - one with a squared term in addition to the linear term and one with a square root
term in addition to the linear term. The demand data are numbered (from 1 to 66 in this case) and the
linear trend was evaluated by regressing the demand data against their numbers. Squared term refers
to including the number squared as an independent variable (and square root term refers to including
the square root of the number as an independent variable). The results are shown below for the model

using the squared term:

R-squared .1663
p-value for linear trend

coefficient 751
p-value for non-linear trend

coefficient .243

Using non-linear trend components to extrapolate into the future is risky and is seriously recommended
against when the coefficients are statistically insignificant as they are here. For completeness, however,

if this model were used, the forecasts would be:

The corresponding results and forecasts for the model using the square root term (again, it is

Year Network Demand (kw)
2010 3,782,458
2011 3,656,845
2012 3,509,406
2013 3,340,142
2104 3,149,053

recommended against using these) are as follows:

R-squared .1678
p-value for linear trend
coefficient .071
p-value for non-linear trend
coefficient .226
Year Network Demand (kw)
2010 3,817,231
2011 3,738,227
2012 3,655,825
2013 3,570,646
2104 3,483,142
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Although there are an infinite number of non-linear models possible, the data do not exhibit any clear

non-linear patterns (other than seasonality) and it is not believed that further examination of non-linear

models would be fruitful.

Full Details of the regressions and monthly forecasts are included in the Appendix.

Line Connection:

A plot of the demand data showed some seasonality, but not as much as for the network demand.
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The data were deseasonalized as before. The monthly indices are as follows.

Month
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Each month’s demand was then divided by its monthly index to deseasonalize the data. The resulting

demand shows no visible trend:
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Not surprisingly, the trend regressions were insignificant for the linear as well as the non-linear models.

For completeness, the results are shown below:

The following results are for the model with only the linear term:

R-squared .0018
p-value for linear trend
coefficient .738

Although not recommended, if this model were used, the forecasts would be:

Year Line Connection Demand (kw)
2010 2,939,035
2011 2,935,498
2012 2,931,960
2013 2,928,422
2104 2,924,884

The following results are for the non-linear model with the squared term:

R-squared .0019
p-value for linear trend

coefficient .943
p-value for non-linear trend

coefficient .992

Although not recommended, if this model were used, the forecasts would be:



The following results are for the non-linear model with the square root term:

Although not recommended, if this model were used, the forecasts would be:

Full Details of the regressions and monthly forecasts are included in the Appendix.

Year Line Connection Demand (kw)
2010 2,938,422
2011 2,934,318
2012 2,930,062
2013 2,925,656
2104 2,921,099

R-squared .0051
p-value for linear trend

coefficient .607
p-value for non-linear trend

coefficient .645

Year Line Connection Demand (kw)
2010 2,922,671
2011 2,908,425
2012 2,893,144
2013 2,877,016
2104 2,860,180

Transformation Connection:

A plot of the demand data showed significant seasonality.
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The data were deseasonalized as before. The monthly indices are as follows.

Month Index
1 1.071876
2 1.035377
3 1.144433
4 1.018737
5 0.877215
6 0.906422
7 0.906404
8 0.931820
9 0.940097
10 1.034768
11 1.026218
12 1.106632
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Each month’s demand was then divided by its monthly index to deseasonalize the data. The resulting

demand shows no clear trend:
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Not surprisingly, the trend regressions were insignificant for the linear as well as the non-linear models.

For completeness, the results are shown below:

The following results are for the model with only the linear term:

R-squared .0144
p-value for linear trend
coefficient .485

Although not recommended, if this model were used, the forecasts would be:
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Year Line Connection Demand (kw)

2010 1,008,605

2011 996,029

2012 983,452

2013 970,875

2104 958,299

The following results are for the non-linear model with the squared term:

R-squared .0498
p-value for linear trend

coefficient 374
p-value for non-linear trend

coefficient 276

Although not recommended, if this model were used, the forecasts would be:

Year Line Connection Demand (kw)
2010 923,958
2011 784,343
2012 593,864
2013 352,520
2104 60,311

One clearly sees here the dangers of extrapolating a non-linear trend very far into the future, especially
when it is not significant. If carried forward one more year, the forecasted demand would be negative.

The following results are for the non-linear model with the square root term:

R-squared .0274
p-value for linear trend

coefficient 442
p-value for non-linear trend

coefficient 511

Although not recommended, if this model were used, the forecasts would be:



Year Line Connection Demand (kw)
2010 980,390
2011 938,873
2012 893,505
2013 845,305
2104 794,906

Full Details of the regressions and monthly forecasts are included in the Appendix.
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Appendix

The detailed regression outputs from the models are shown below.

Network Demand

SUMMARY
OUTPUT

Regression Statistics

Multiple R 0.384659988
R Square 0.147963307
Adjusted R Square 0.134650233

Standard Error 14167.26097
Observations 66
ANOVA

df SS MS F Significance F
Regression 1 2230732485 2230732485  11.11413593 0.001427935
Residual 64 12845522132 200711283.3
Total 65 15076254617

Coefficients Standard Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 344646.5469 3527.752157 97.69579368 2.24588E-71 337599.0519 351694.0419
Index -305.174556 91.53990754 -3.333787025  0.001427935 -488.046542  -122.3025701
SUMMARY
OUTPUT
Regression Statistics

Multiple R 0.407856454
R Square 0.166346887
Adjusted R Square 0.139881708
Standard Error 14124.37193
Observations 66
ANOVA

df SS MS F Significance F
Regression 2 2507888018 1253944009  6.285500343 0.00324369
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Residual 63 12568366599  199497882.5
Total 65 15076254617
Coefficients Standard Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 339851.2003 5377.914222  63.19386779  1.06271E-58  329104.2964 350598.1042
Index 117.9442623 370.3987228  0.318425132  0.751215706 -622.238515 858.1270396
Index Squared -6.315206244 5.357903742 -1.17867109  0.242961805  -17.02212241 4.391709919
SUMMARY
OUTPUT
Regression Statistics
Multiple R 0.409641432
R Square 0.167806102
Adjusted R Square 0.141387249
Standard Error 14112.00496
Observations 66
ANOVA
df SS MS F Significance F
Regression 2 2529887527 1264943763  6.351755574  0.003069535
Residual 63 12546367090 199148684
Total 65 15076254617
Coefficients Standard Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 331183.7031 11532.81233  28.71664722  6.69422E-38  308137.2169 354230.1893
Index -890.1696066 485.9331088  -1.831876838  0.071697749  -1861.229429 80.89021585

Index Square Root 6038.940992

4927.21307

1.22563017

0.224899973

-3807.308548

15885.19053

Line Connection Demand

SUMMARY
OUTPUT

Regression Statistics

Multiple R 0.041874998
R Square 0.001753515
Adjusted R Square  0.013844086
Standard Error 11362.1632

Observations 66
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ANOVA
Significance
df ss ms F F
Regression 1 14513556.02 14513556.02 0.112422124 0.738499835
Residual 64 8262320166 129098752.6
Total 65 8276833722
Standard
Coefficients Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 247182.376  2829.262186 87.36637317 2.72016E-68 241530.2751 252834.4769
Index 24.61566044  73.41513446 0.335294086 0.738499835 171.2792501 122.0479292
SUMMARY
OUTPUT
Regression Statistics
Multiple R 0.041894226
R Square 0.001755126
Adjusted R Square  0.029935187
Standard Error 11451.97483
Observations 66
ANOVA
Significance
df SS MS F F
Regression 2 14526887.8 7263443.901 0.055383681 0.946168081
Residual 63 8262306834 131147727.5
Total 65 8276833722
Standard
Coefficients Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 247149.1175 4360.387747 56.68053665  8.95056E-56 238435.578 255862.657
Index 21.68108923  300.3175554 0.072193879 0.942676325 621.8178299 578.4556514
Index Squared -0.04379957  4.344163343 0.010082395 0.991987409 8.724917215 8.637318075

SUMMARY
OUTPUT

Regression Statistics

Multiple R
R Square

0.071643698
0.005132819
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Adjusted R Square  0.026450266
Standard Error 11432.58378
Observations 66
ANOVA
Significance
df SS MS F F
Regression 2  42483493.43 21241746.72 0.162517989 0.850356006
Residual 63 8234350229 130703971.9
Total 65 8276833722
Standard
Coefficients Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 243065.8165 9343.097846 26.01554865 2.09516E-35 224395.1255 261736.5076
Index 203.4907135 393.6698572 0.516907022 0.607031057 990.1771417 583.1957147
Index Square Root  1846.538512  3991.691924 0.462595448 0.645248202 6130.221212 9823.298236
Transformation Connection Demand
SUMMARY
OUTPUT
Regression Statistics
Multiple R 0.120194984
R Square 0.014446834
Adjusted R Square  0.014540024
Standard Error 7711.023849
Observations 36
ANOVA
Significance
df sS MS F F
Regression 1 29634366.05 29634366.05 0.498392558 0.485016867
Residual 34 2021636219 59459888.8
Total 35 2051270585
Standard
Coefficients Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 87759.75784  2624.842212 33.43429843  1.35065E-27 82425.4367 93094.07898
Index 87.33781226  123.7133408 0.705969233 0.485016867 338.7535683 164.0779438
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SUMMARY
OUTPUT

Regression Statistics

Multiple R 0.22312154
R Square 0.049783222

Adjusted R Square  0.007805674

Standard Error 7685.388984
Observations 36
ANOVA
Significance
df SS MS F F
Regression 2 102118858.5 51059429.26 0.864458699 0.430600432
Residual 33 1949151727 59065203.84
Total 35 2051270585
Standard
Coefficients Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 84310.8985 4066.522173 20.73292482  1.69886E-20 76037.49697 92584.30002
Index 457.2189261 506.7994202 0.902169394 0.373504925 573.8722419 1488.310094
Index Squared 14.71774968  13.28570836 1.107788105 0.275962632 41.74772643 12.31222707
SUMMARY
OUTPUT

Regression Statistics

Multiple R 0.165623955
R Square 0.027431294

Adjusted R Square  0.031512263

Standard Error 7775.25519
Observations 36
ANOVA

Significance

df sS MS F F

Regression 2 56269007.42 28134503.71 0.4653824 0.631953034
Residual 33 1995001578 60454593.27
Total 35 2051270585
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Standard
Coefficients Error t Stat P-value Lower 95% Upper 95%
Intercept 81880.02717  9245.210175 8.856480882  3.09062E-10 63070.50573 100689.5486
Index 540.5394487 694.0847513 0.778780182 0.441658163 1952.665486 871.5865886

Index Square Root

3497.996516

5269.999787

0.663756482

0.511457162 7223.898614

14219.89165
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The forecasts were first made on a monthly basis. The annual forecasts were then made by summing up

the monthly forecasts. The monthly forecasts are shown below.

Network Line Connection Transformation Connection
Trend Trend Trend Trend Trend Trend
w/ w/ w/ w/ w/ w/
Square Square Square
Linear Square Rt Linear Square Rt Linear | Square Rt

Month Year | Average | Trend Term Term Average | Trend Term Term Average | Trend | Term Term

January 2010 | 385120 | 373347 | 367825 369631 | 257063 | 256203 | 256168 255173 92336 | 90604 86907 89135
February 2010 | 372661 | 360929 | 355107 357091 | 248084 | 247229 | 247192 246168 89192 | 87428 83278 85835
March 2010 | 363641 | 351861 | 345699 347877 | 252435 | 251540 | 251499 250392 98586 | 96537 91276 94580
April 2010 | 331870 | 320816 | 314741 316959 | 246655 | 245755 | 245713 244565 87758 | 85845 80532 83925
May 2010 | 290524 | 280582 | 274858 277009 | 229522 | 228662 | 228620 227491 75567 | 73843 68700 72033
June 2010 | 309403 | 298533 | 291993 294518 | 241383 | 240455 | 240407 239154 78083 | 76222 70295 74188
July 2010 | 309473 | 298318 | 291321 294088 | 239389 | 238444 | 238393 237086 78081 | 76142 69574 73940
August 2010 | 309173 | 297746 | 290289 293305 | 239605 | 238635 | 238581 237207 80271 | 78195 70758 75756
September | 2010 | 302426 | 290973 | 283210 286417 | 244942 | 243926 | 243867 242394 80984 | 78808 70585 76168
October 2010 | 319507 | 307116 | 298408 302075 | 253314 | 252239 | 252174 250580 89139 | 86654 76780 83547
November | 2010 | 351505 | 337552 | 327401 331754 | 243862 | 242802 | 242736 241132 88403 | 85848 75210 82565
December | 2010 | 367774 | 352839 | 341607 346507 | 254277 | 253146 | 253073 251329 95330 | 92479 80062 88718
January 2011 | 385120 | 369130 | 356713 362217 | 257063 | 255894 | 255816 253979 92336 | 89480 76508 85621
February 2011 | 372661 | 356848 | 344186 349885 | 248084 | 246931 | 246852 245007 89192 | 86343 72867 82403
March 2011 | 363641 | 347879 | 334877 340814 | 252435 | 251237 | 251152 249201 98586 | 95338 79364 90746
April 2011 | 331870 | 317182 | 304715 310486 | 246655 | 245460 | 245372 243394 87758 | 84777 69569 80477
May 2011 | 290524 | 277401 | 265949 271320 | 229522 | 228387 | 228302 226393 75567 | 72924 58950 69034
June 2011 | 309403 | 295145 | 282365 288433 | 241383 | 240165 | 240072 237992 78083 | 75272 59900 71060
July 2011 | 309473 | 294929 | 281550 287978 | 239389 | 238157 | 238060 235925 78081 | 75192 58859 70783
August 2011 | 309173 | 294361 | 280388 287178 | 239605 | 238348 | 238246 236037 80271 | 77219 59413 72483
September | 2011 | 302426 | 287662 | 273388 280400 | 244942 | 243632 | 243523 241191 80984 | 77823 58807 72837
October 2011 | 319507 | 303617 | 287886 295695 | 253314 | 251935 | 251817 249328 89139 | 85569 63451 79852
November | 2011 | 351505 | 333703 | 315666 324710 | 243862 | 242510 | 242392 239920 88403 | 84773 61629 78872
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December 2011 367774 | 348812 | 329162 339110 254277 | 252841 | 252713 250057 95330 | 91319 65026 84705
January 2012 385120 | 364912 | 343507 354445 257063 | 255586 | 255452 252686 92336 | 88357 61565 81706
February 2012 372661 | 352767 | 331238 342338 248084 | 246634 | 246499 243752 89192 | 85258 58067 78595
March 2012 363641 | 343897 | 322078 333426 252435 | 250934 | 250792 247917 98586 | 94138 62602 86508
April 2012 331870 | 313548 | 292884 303721 246655 | 245164 | 245019 242132 87758 | 83710 54288 76680
May 2012 290524 | 274219 | 255460 265378 229522 | 228112 | 227972 225213 75567 | 72004 45482 65744
June 2012 309403 | 291757 | 271054 282086 241383 | 239876 | 239724 236744 78083 | 74322 45663 67639
July 2012 309473 | 291540 | 270097 281610 239389 | 237870 | 237714 234682 78081 | 74242 44302 67342
August 2012 309173 | 290975 | 268805 280797 239605 | 238061 | 237899 234786 80271 | 76242 44119 68925
September | 2012 302426 | 284350 | 261921 274140 244942 | 243338 | 243167 239906 80984 | 76837 43045 69228
October 2012 319507 | 300119 | 275626 289062 253314 | 251631 | 251448 247993 89139 | 84485 45736 75857
November | 2012 351505 | 329854 | 302019 317391 243862 | 242217 | 242035 238628 88403 | 83697 43698 74890
December 2012 367774 | 344785 | 314718 331432 254277 | 252536 | 252341 248704 95330 | 90159 45299 80389
January 2013 385120 | 360695 | 328206 346382 257063 | 255278 | 255074 251312 92336 | 87234 42079 77505
February 2013 372661 | 348686 | 316263 334515 248084 | 246336 | 246133 242421 89192 | 84173 38879 74517
March 2013 363641 | 339915 | 307301 325772 252435 | 250632 | 250418 246556 98586 | 92939 40988 81979
April 2013 331870 | 309914 | 279247 296718 246655 | 244868 | 244654 240797 87758 | 82642 34688 72630
May 2013 290524 | 271038 | 243391 259232 229522 | 227837 | 227631 223965 75567 | 71085 28295 62241
June 2013 309403 | 288369 | 258061 275524 | 241383 | 239587 | 239364 235427 78083 | 73373 27583 64004
July 2013 309473 | 288151 | 256960 275030 239389 | 237583 | 237356 233370 78081 | 73292 25903 63691
August 2013 309173 | 287590 | 255541 274207 239605 | 237773 | 237540 233469 80271 | 75266 24875 65157
September | 2013 302426 | 281038 | 248809 267679 244942 | 243045 | 242799 238554 80984 | 75852 23298 65410
October 2013 319507 | 296620 | 261629 282220 253314 | 251327 | 251066 246589 89139 | 83400 23635 71639
November | 2013 351505 | 326004 | 286461 309847 243862 | 241925 | 241667 237272 88403 | 82622 21417 70690
December 2013 367774 | 340758 | 298273 323520 254277 | 252232 | 251955 247285 95330 | 88999 20881 75842
January 2014 | 385120 | 356478 | 310811 338079 257063 | 254970 | 254683 249872 92336 | 86110 18049 73085
February 2014 | 372661 | 344605 | 299262 326463 248084 | 246039 | 245755 241026 89192 | 83088 15302 70232
March 2014 | 363641 | 335933 | 290547 317898 252435 | 250329 | 250032 245132 98586 | 91739 14523 77227
April 2014 | 331870 | 306280 | 263806 289516 246655 | 244572 | 244275 239401 87758 | 81574 10770 68384
May 2014 | 290524 | 267857 | 229742 252914 | 229522 | 227561 | 227278 222661 75567 | 70166 7390 58573
June 2014 | 309403 | 284981 | 243384 268782 241383 | 239297 | 238992 234051 78083 | 72423 5662 60201
July 2014 | 309473 | 284763 | 242140 268273 239389 | 237296 | 236986 232002 78081 | 72342 3662 59877
August 2014 | 309173 | 284204 | 240595 267443 239605 | 237486 | 237168 232094 80271 | 74289 1681 61222
September | 2014 | 302426 | 277727 | 234053 261049 244942 | 242751 | 242418 237144 80984 | 74867 -434 61429
October 2014 | 319507 | 293121 | 245894 275202 253314 | 251024 | 250671 245127 89139 | 82316 -2852 67243
November | 2014 | 351505 | 322155 | 268991 302111 243862 | 241632 | 241285 235860 88403 | 81546 -5214 66317
December 2014 | 367774 | 336730 | 279828 315412 254277 | 251927 | 251556 245809 95330 | 87839 -8228 71114
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RESPONSES TO SECOND ROUND OF INTERROGATORIES
FROM VULNERABLE ENERGY CONSUMERS COALITION
18. Reference: Ex 10/T2/S1 IR#3 a)
Preamble

In looking at this response, most projects appear to come in service near the end of
each year. To quantify, if somewhat crudely, an average quarter in which projects come
into service may be calculated by the following scheme:

o For projects which come into service in a specific quarter, assign the
number of the in-service quarter to the project, i.e., assign the number
"1" to projects that come into service in quarter one, the number "2" to
projects that come into service in quarter two, etc.;

o For projects which come into service in e.g., "second half 2010,"
(quarter 3 or quarter 4) assign the "average™ of the quarters, here the
number "3.5";

o For projects in-service mid-year, e.g., "Mid-2010" assign the number
"2.5"; and

o For projects whose in-service date straddles two quarters, e.g., "Q2-
2008/Q3-2008" assign the average of the two quarters' numbers, in this
case "2.5."

If such a coding is applied to the 36 projects specified in the referenced response, the
"average in-service date" is quarter 3.55.

Request

a) Has it been GLPT's experience that by far most projects are in-service
considerably later than mid-year? If so, please explain why, in general, so few
projects are in-service by mid-year.

Response

a) In the last few years, it has been GLPT’s experience that many projects come
into service later than mid-year. However, while this has been our experience
over the past number of years, this, in and of itself, does not preclude the ability
of projects to come into service throughout the year. In GLPT’s opinion, the
appropriate assumption is that assets can come into service at various times
throughout the year. Please refer to GLPT’s response to SEC Interrogatory #5
from the first round of interrogatories.

10702339.6
35306-2001
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19. Reference:  Ex 10/T2/S1 IR#4 a)
Requests
a) For the previously approved projects, i.e., all but the three lines "Other Capital

Additions" that were "not previously approved” for the years 2007-2009, does
GLPT agree that in the aggregate the approved spending was 5.90% above the
actual total?

b) If possible, please provide the total contingency amount included in the Board
approved $25,277,200 Subtotal referenced in a) above.

C) Please detail any changes made after 2006 in GLPT's approach with respect to
budgeting for contingencies.

Responses

a) GLPT agrees that in aggregate, and excluding the Transmission Reinforcement
Project (TRP), the approved spending was 5.90% above the actual total. If
TRP is included in the analysis, the approved spending was 1.31% below the
actual total.

b) GLPT allots contingency allowances to projects for two main reasons:

The first reason contingency allowances are included is for projects that may be
unclear in terms of input prices or scope. By way of example, the fluctuating
price of a material or piece of equipment can significantly affect the cost of a
project, particularly when preparing a budget 6-12 months (or more) in advance
of the project.

The second reason for contingency allowances is to capture items not itemized
in the original estimate. When preparing a project budget, GLPT considers the
main cost drivers, but does not delve into the deepest details of the potential
costs, as the benefit of such an activity does not outweigh the cost. As a result,
GLPT includes a contingency to capture some of the relatively insignificant
costs that arise throughout the course of a project.

GLPT has typically budgeted 10% for contingencies. However, this is based on
project type. In some circumstances, a contingency greater than or less than
10% may be considered. The total contingency amount included in the
$25,277,200 is estimated to be approximately $2.3M, or 10% for each project.

c) GLPT has not changed its approach with respect to budgeting for
contingencies.

10702339.6
35306-2001
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20. Reference:  Ex 10/T2/S1 IR#4 a) and b)
Preamble

The Appendix indicates that the approved corporate capital budget for GLPT was
$11,274,930 in 2006. However, the response to #4 a) indicates that 2006 Board
approved total for 2006 was $13,392,200.

Requests

a) Please explain why the Board approved capital expenditures for 2006 exceeded
the corporate capital budgeted amount by more than $2.1 M.

b) Please confirm that the actual 2006 capital spending of $14,308,727 includes
$2.913M of spending that was approved for spending in 2005 (CIRS Phases 1
& 2 and Hollingsworth TS Refurb). If unable to so confirm, please explain.

C) Please provide the contingency amounts included in the corporate approved
capital budgets for each year 2006-2010 inclusive.

Responses

a) The reason for the $2.1 million difference is that GLPT’s approved capital
budget was based on required cash flow and not what was going to be placed
into service in the given year. Specifically, in 2005 GLPT spent approximately
$2.1 million on the Patrick Street refurbishment and because the items
purchased and services contracted were not yet “used and useful” GLPT could
not place them into service and capitalize the expenditure. An additional $2.7
million was spent in completing the Patrick Street refurbishment project in
2006 where all assets were placed into service and the total amount of $4.8
million was capitalized.

b) Confirmed.

C) GLPT has applied a 10% contingency to all projects that have occurred or will
occur between 2006 and 2010. Based on this, the portion of each annual budget
that is contingency would be 9.09%. This is not equal to 10% because the 10%
factor is applied to the original amount, not the overall total. In terms of an
example, a $10 project would attract a $1 contingency, making it $11 in total.
The $1 contingency is 9.09% of the total cost of the project (1/11).

2006 estimate - $1,025k

2007 estimate - $1,025k

10702339.6
35306-2001
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2008 estimate - $809k
2009 estimate - $1,108k

2010 estimate - $1,473k

10702339.6
35306-2001
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21. Reference:  Ex 10/T2/S1 IR#4 b)
Requests
a) Please provide the details with respect to any contractual or structural changes

that would be expected to result in changes in lead or lag days since the study
was completed (if applicable.)

b) Will the July 1, 2010 implementation have any consequences with respect to
WCA? Please explain.

Responses

a) Not applicable, other than noted below. GLPT anticipates that an updated
study would refresh the existing data, and GLPT would expect the study to
yield similar lead and lag days.

b) GLPT anticipates that the July 1, 2010 implementation of HST will impact the
working capital allowance methodology. A portion of the existing PST will
become an input tax credit and will no longer form part of GLPT’s capital and
OM&A expenditures. This will not be the case for all expenditures, as there
are a number of expenditures that are not eligible for an input tax credit on the
provincial portion of the HST. Some of these expenditures include energy
costs, vehicle costs, and telecommunications costs. At the time of filing this
response, GLPT has not completed a full assessment of the impact of HST on
the transmission business.

10702339.6
35306-2001
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22. Reference:  Ex 10/T2/S1 IR#6
Requests
a) Please indicate whether providing the information requested in parts a) and b)

of the referenced IR is (i) impossible or (ii) merely arduous in GLPT's view.

b) Please indicate whether GLPT is able to provide an estimate of 2010 savings
due to the implementation of the HST. If able, please provide an estimate. If
not, please explain why not.

C) Is GLPT amenable to the establishment of a deferral account to track actual
savings related to HST implementation?

Responses

a) To identify precise figures in response to parts a) and b) would be extremely
difficult, and the process of doing so would be subject to human error.
Because GLPT records expenses inclusive of PST, in order to provide the
requested information, GLPT would have to review every invoice received
during each month of 2009, determine whether PST was payable and
separately record that number. GLPT estimates there would be approximately
1000 invoices that would need to be reviewed in this manner.

b) Please see GLPT’s response to part ¢) below.

C) GLPT is amenable to the establishment of a deferral account to track actual
savings related to HST implementation.

10702339.6
35306-2001
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23. Reference:  Ex 10/T2/S1 IR#12
Requests
a) Please indicate why energy savings due to building envelope improvements are
unaffected by Algoma Power Inc.'s implementation of any of the
recommendations.
b) Please provide an update to part a) of IR #12.
Responses
a) The implementation of the building envelope improvements to GLPT’s portion

of the complex are entirely under GLPT’s control and, as such, will not be
affected by Algoma Power Inc.’s implementation of any of the
recommendations.

b) At the time of filing this interrogatory response, GLPT has no additional
information on the intentions of Algoma Power Inc. with respect to
implementing any of the recommendations found in the energy audit report.

10702339.6
35306-2001
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24, Reference:  Ex 10/T2/S1 IR#15
Request
a) Is it GLPT's view that ratepayers would be adversely affected if the incentive
plan were made less generous? Please explain fully.
Response
a) The incentive pay forms part of the total compensation package that GLPT

provides to its employees. A reduction in the incentive pay program would
represent a reduction in the total compensation offered by GLPT, and will
expose GLPT to the loss of highly skilled employees. In addition, the
incentive plan focuses GLPT’s employees on activities that are in the best
interest of the ratepayer as laid out in response to Board Staff Interrogatory 23
(iii). GLPT utilizes the incentive plan to fairly compensate employees while
focusing their attention on activities that are in the best interest of the
ratepayer.

10702339.6
35306-2001



Exhibit 11, Tab 3, Schedule 1

Responses to Supplemental Interrogatories from the
School Energy Coalition (SEC)



EB-2009-0408
Exhibit 11

Tab 3
Schedule 1

1 0of 43

RESPONSES TO SECOND ROUND OF INTERROGATORIES

FROM SCHOOL ENERGY COALITION

Request

Please provide any internal planning memoranda, analyses, or other documents, whether
prepared by the Applicant, its predecessor(s), or any related party, dated after 2005 that
expressly reference changes to operating practices, business structure, or regulatory
approach in order to increase the amount of costs that are recoverable in transmission
rates.

Response

There are no such documents.
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Request

Please confirm that the Application does not include any changes in amounts,
presentation, or accounting treatment, resulting from the implementation of, or changes in
anticipation of, International Financial Reporting Standards.

Response

Confirmed.
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Request

[10/3/1, p. 1] Please provide the documents requested.

Response

All inquiries related to non-regulated activities or entities, including Brookfield
Infrastructure Partners LP, and the respective tax arrangements are irrelevant. With
respect to GLPT LP, please see response to Board Staff Supplemental Interrogatory 10(i).
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Request
[10/3/1, p. 5] With respect to this response:

Please file the “internal assessment” referred to in (b).

Please confirm that the document contained in 10/3/2/App. 4(d) is the only document
meeting the criteria in the question. Please explain how that document relates to
vegetation management.

Response
The internal assessment comprised the following:
e Review of NERC FAC-003 and its application to GLPT,
e Determination of GLPT’s obligations under NERC and IESO standards,

e Comparison of new standards to existing vegetation management work
programs, and

e Development of program improvements necessary to meet standards.
No formal written assessment was prepared based on the above analysis.

GLPT confirms this is the only document that meets the criteria in this question. The
line “Forestry Major “ROW” Maintenance” reflects the potential cost savings in
vegetation management. The cost reductions reflected in this column were the
reductions made to the major maintenance programs GLPT had originally planned for
2009.
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Request
[10/3/1, pp 8-9] With respect to this response:

Please provide the Canadian tax returns for each of the partners for 2008. Please
calculate, with respect to each of those tax returns, the impact on the actual tax payable
for 2008 of the income allocated as a partner of the Applicant.

Please advise the Net Book Value of the assets transferred for $92.5 million fair market
value.

Please explain why a different formula is used for fair market value in 2008 (d) vs. 2007

(b).
Response

The 2008 Canadian tax returns for each partner were included in the confidential filing
“Attachment B”. The 2008 tax return included in “Attachment B” for Great Lakes
Power Transmission Inc. (GLPTI) reflects the impact on the actual tax payable for 2008
of the income allocated as a partner of the Applicant.

GLPT has prepared 2008 pro forma Federal and Ontario tax returns for BIH reflecting
only the income from GLPT. Please see Appendix 5(a) for the calculation.

The Net Book Value of the property, plant and equipment assets transferred is $203.5
million. These assets were transferred for $92.5 million in cash, plus the assumption of
$120.0 million in debt.

The formula used does not differ between the years as both formulas used a market rate
and a relative spread. The difference was merely in the inputs to the formula with
respect to base rate and the spread. As a result of the change in ownership of the
transmission assets and the spin-off of GLPT’s debt, the 2007 fair value was calculated
by Brookfield Renewable Power Inc., while the 2008 fair value was calculated by
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners. Each parent company utilizes a policy for what
sources to use as inputs, and the change in inputs between 2007 and 2008 was deemed
by the auditors to have had an immaterial effect on the calculation.
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Request
[10/3/1, p 10] With respect to this response:

Please advise how many months of actuals and how many months of forecast were used
in the pro forma financials.

Please provide an estimate of the actual tax (federal and provincial) payable by each of
the partners of the Applicant for each of 2009 and 2010, and disaggregate those figures
into tax payable on the income allocated from the Applicant, and tax payable for income
from all other sources.

Response

Nine months of actual data was incorporated into the pro-forma, and three months of
data was forecast.

BIH contains operations from GLPT as well as non-regulated activities of which GLPT
has no direct knowledge. Regardless of the level of tax actually paid by BIH, BIH will
incur a tax liability as a result of the income allocated to it from GLPT. The income
allocated to BIH will be 99.9% of the net income (before taxes) generated by GLPT
(2009 - $3.41 million, 2010 - $7.19 million). As stated above, this will create a tax
burden at BIH. If this were the only activity engaged in by BIH, this would create a tax
payable. However, because of the blending of non-regulated income with regulated
income at the corporate level, there is potential for the tax liability to be impacted by
income or losses that may be incurred in the non-regulated businesses of BIH.

GLP Transmission Inc. only contains the operation of GLPT and as such there would be
no other tax payable for income from all other sources. GLP Transmission Inc. is
allocated 0.1% of the net income (before taxes) generated by GLPT (2009 - $0.003
million, 2010 - $0.007 million). GLP Transmission Inc. pays tax at the effective rates on
that income.

Additional information is provided in GLPT’s confidential filing dated April 9, 2010.



EB-2009-0408
Exhibit 11

Tab 3
Schedule 1

7 of 43

Request

[10/3/1, p. 13] Please reconcile the answer to (c) with the statement in the Form 20-F, as
requested.

Response
GLPT LP was formed in 2007. The reference to 1982 appears to be an error.
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Request

[10/3/1, p. 17] Please provide the split between actual and forecast, showing how many
months of actual was used, and the dollar amounts of each of actual and forecast. Please
explain why 2009 was considered to be a “unique” year.

Response

Nine months of actual data and three months of forecast data was used. Please see the
table below.

($000's) Actual at  Forecast for

USofA Sept. 30 Oct-Dec Total 2009
Revenue 4325 ($316.8) ($83.2) ($400.0)
Expenses 4330 313.4 86.6 400.0

2009 was a unique year because of the transition of the transmission and distribution
businesses into separate entities. Through the process, work was completed by the
transmission company on behalf of the distribution company, and vice versa. All of this
work was tracked, billed at actual cost, and accounted for through the merchandising and
jobbing accounts. Whether an employee completed a transmission-related task as an
employee of GLPL (pre-June 30™) or as an employee of Great Lakes Power Distribution
Inc. (ie. post June 30™), the net cost to GLPT would have been identical. As a result, there
were no incremental costs associated with the unique 2009 activity.
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Request

[10/3/1, p. 19] Please confirm that the forecast of $475,000 for 2010 for “the costs of
managing the buffer zones” is expected to continue at a similar level in subsequent years.
If that is not the case, please provide the Applicant’s best estimates for each of 2011 and
2012 for this category of costs.

Response

Confirmed.
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Request

[10/3/1, p. 23] Please complete the chart at the top of the page for each of 2006 through
2009. For each variance in a category between one year and the next of $50,000 or more,
please provide a brief explanation of the reason for the increase or decrease. For each of
the years 2006 through 2009, please advise the amount of any legal costs related to
transactions (such as purchases or sales, reorganizations, etc.) that are included in the
total.

Response

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Test
Legal Cost Category Actual Actual Actual Bridge Year
Transmission System Code $121.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0
2005/2006 Transmission Rates 95.0 39.3 - - -
MAAD Application for Asset Sale 130.0 16.8 - - -
2010 and 2011 Rate Application - - 96.6 400.0 $345.0
2010 Rate Application - Intervenors - - - - 60.0
Connection Cost Responsibility - - 85.6 - -
Licence Application - - 32.3 15.2 -
Interpretation of Legislation - 3.8 4.1 5.1 5.0
Other General Legal Counsel 78.5 30.7 82.7 99.7 40.0
Total $424.5 $90.6 $301.4 $520.0 $450.0

“2009 Other” contains costs related to transmission development, the Green Energy and
Green Economy Act, the OEB Cost of Capital proceeding, the OEB Incentive Rates
proceeding and other miscellaneous expenses.

2008 Other” contains costs related to miscellaneous transmission development costs,
Transmission System Code issues, preparation for stakeholder meetings, the IPSP
proceeding and other miscellaneous expenses.

“2006 Other” contains costs for Hydro One review, Connection and Cost Recovery
research and other miscellaneous expenses.
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Request

[10/3/1. P. 27] Please advise the total amount of corporate expenses incurred by BIP, in
the categories for which a total of $298,600 is allocated to the Applicant, and the total
amount of those expenses allocated to related parties other than the Applicant or BIP.

Response

In the categories for which $298,600 is allocated to GLPT, BIP incurs total costs of
approximately $4,750,000.

BIP does not allocate corporate costs to the other entities because it is neutral as to how it
receives its compensation. BIP could be compensated directly, which would result in a
diminishment of corporate profits from the companies served. Alternatively, BIP could
be compensated through increased profitability since the costs for its services would not
be expensed to the companies served. For a regulated utility, this does not apply because
expenses that are not recognized for regulatory purposes will not have a corresponding
increase in corporate profitability.
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Request

[10/3/1, p. 28] Please explain why no payments are being made to the Applicant for the
use of the Applicant’s poles by the fibre optic network. If any reference to use of the
poles is contained in any agreement, please provide that agreement.

Response

This provision was left out of the agreement as a result of an oversight when preparing
the lease agreement. GLPT will accept a $20,602 reduction to its revenue requirement

representing the total revenue that would have been received, as calculated in the
following table:

Annual Rental Fee per Pole $22.35
Number of Shared Poles 1,573
Annual Revenue Generated 35,157
Portion of Costs charged back to GLPT thru agreement 41.40%
$ Charged back to GLPT thru agreement 14,555
Net Incremental Revenue for GLPT ~ $20,602 |

To address this oversight, GLPL has agreed to enter into a joint use agreement with
GLPT, in which an annual rental of $35,157, adjusted to $20,602, to account for the
appropriate maintenance cost allocations under the Fibre Optic Agreement, will be paid

by GLPL to GLPT in exchange for GLPL’s use of GLPT’s poles for its fibre optic
network.
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Request

[10/3/1, p. 31] Please provide any tax planning memorandum that includes reference to,
or analysis of, the choice of structure of the asset sale and its tax impacts.

Response

There are no tax planning memoranda that include reference to, or analysis of, the choice
of structure of the asset sale and its tax impacts. Given the relatively straightforward
transaction from a tax perspective, no tax planning memorandum was specifically
prepared for this transaction.
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Request

[10/3/1, p 32] Please provide the offering document related to the issuance of the bonds
by GLPL as referenced in the response to (d). Please provide the Supplemental Trust
Indenture under which those bonds were issued. Please explain any differences between
the terms of the original issuance, and the terms of issuance of the Series 1 Bonds issued
by the Applicant on March 12, 2008.

Response

Please see Appendix 14 for copies of the following:

o Final Offering Memorandum (June 12, 2003)

o Deed of Trust (June 16, 2003)

o First Supplemental Indenture (June 16, 2003)

o Amendment to the Deed of Trust (July 17, 2003)
o Second Supplemental Indenture (July 31, 2003)

There is no difference in the financial terms of the Series 1 Bonds issued on March 12,
2008 as compared to the terms of the original issuance on June 16, 2003.

With respect to non-financial terms, there are changes to the Deed of Trust under which
the Series 1 Bonds were issued by GLPT on March 12, 2008 as compared to the terms of
the original issuance under the Deed of Trust dated June 16, 2003. Of particular note,
under the new Deed of Trust for GLPT, no capital reserve account is required and there
was a reduction in the amount of the debt service reserve account.
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Request

[10/3/2/App 7(a), p. 4] Please explain in detail the “Other expenses” of $1,916,000 in
Oct/Nov, 2009.

Response

The other expenses recorded in Q4-2009 are related to adjustments made to regulatory
asset and liability accounts. GLPT anticipates that the 2009 audited financial statements
will reflect these other expenses as a reduction in revenue instead of an expense.

The costs are related to recording the following regulatory accounts:
Account 1505 — true-up of lost revenue and over-collected costs - $71,400
Account 1508 — recording of avoided meter costs - $593,700

Accounts 1562/1592 — LCT, Capital and Income Tax true-ups - $1,244,700
Total - $1,909,800

The remaining $6Kk is related to carrying charges on the outstanding deferred rate impact
accrual (Account 1574), offset by income earned on GLPT’s bank balance.
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Request
[10/3/2/App.19(b), pp 10-16] With respect to the First Supplemental Trust Indenture:

Please explain the business rationale behind the two separate “Canada Yield Price”
formulae in s. 1.3(1).

Please explain why the Original Indenture had a Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture
dated March 12, 2008 (see s. 1.3(4)), the same day as the new Trust Indenture and the
First Supplemental Trust Indenture thereunder. Please explain the purpose of the
Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture, and file a copy of that document.

Please provide an explanation, preferably with a numerical example, of how the
Redemption Price referred to in's. 1.3(7) is to be calculated.

Please confirm that the interest rate of 6.60% set out in s. 1.3(11) was not intended to
be a market interest rate, but reflected the interest rate on the bonds the Series 1 Senior
Bonds were replacing. Please advise the interest rate for the bonds issued on each of
June 13, 2003, July 31, 2003, June 30, 2006 and March 12, 2008. Please advise how
much of the bonds the Series 1 Senior Bonds were replacing were issued on each of
those dates.

With respect to s. 2.7, please provide an explanation of the circumstances in which the
interest to be paid on the Series 1 Senior Bonds is intended to be net of tax. Please
explain what tax liabilities are included in the Indemnified Tax, and under what
circumstances it is expected that this indemnity would arise.

Response

A different spread applies in determining the redemption price of the bonds if the bonds
are redeemed pursuant to section 2.5 or 2.8 of the First Supplemental Indenure. Section
2.5 sets out the calculation of the redemption price if the bonds are redeemed at the
option of the issuer for no reason. Section 2.8 sets out the calculation of the
Redemption Price if the bonds are redeemed by the issuer because of a change in the
withholding tax imposed on the interest payments (essentially increasing the overall
interest required to be paid under the bonds). GLPT notes that the relationship between
the spreads and prepayment costs is such that the higher the spread, the lower the
prepayment cost.

The 2003 Deed of Trust, including the First, Second and Third Supplemental
Indentures thereunder, were for the generation and transmission businesses. The
Fourth Supplemental Indenture (dated March 12, 2008) under the 2003 Deed of Trust is
currently relevant for generation only as it contemplated the separation of the
transmission and generation assets and the issuance of new bonds against the
transmission assets. The 2008 Deed of Trust and the First Supplemental thereunder,
both of which are also dated March 12, 2008, are applicable only to transmission. A
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copy of the Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture is provided in Appendix 16(b).

As stated in s. 1.3(7), the redemption price is the greater of (i) the outstanding principal
amount thereof to be redeemed, and (ii) the Canada Yield Price of the principal amount
thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued and unpaid interest up to but excluding
the date fixed for redemption.

The Canada Yield Price is the price for any bonds to be redeemed that provides a yield
from the redemption date to maturity of those bonds equal to the Government of
Canada Yield (defined in s.1.3(3)) plus a spread that is dependent on the circumstance
under which the bonds are being redeemed. If bonds are redeemed pursuant to s. 2.5,
the spread is equal to 0.40% until June 16, 2021, and 0.25% thereafter. If bonds are
redeemed pursuant to s. 2.8, the spread is equal to 1.75%.

Essentially, the Canada Yield Price is intended to compensate bondholders for losing
the interest income that they would have received in respect the bonds being redeemed
over the interest income that they would be able to earn if they reinvested the
prepayment proceeds in Government of Canada Bonds plus a spread . As the
Government of Canada Yield (the market yield on Government of Canada Bonds)
declines, it reduces the interest income available to bondholders in the open market if
bonds are redeemed and the redemption fee charged to GLPT increases in order to
equalize the lower earnings available on the open market with the 6.60% that would
have been received under the bonds up to their maturity.

Redemption under s. 2.5:

If the Bonds were to be redeemed under s. 2.5 on June 16, 2010, based on GLPT’s
estimate of the current Government of Canada Yield, GLPT estimates that the
redemption fee would be equal to approximately $146M. This is the principal value
plus the present value of the bondholders’ “lost earnings” between this date and the
date of maturity. This is based on a Government of Canada Yield of 3.88%, which is
GLPT’s best estimate based on the information available, plus a spread of 0.40% .

Redemption under s. 2.8:

If the Bonds were to be redeemed under s. 2.8 on June 16, 2010, based the same
estimated 3.88% Government of Canada Yield, GLPT estimates that the redemption fee
would be equal to approximately $129M. This is the principal value plus the present
value of the bondholders’ “lost earnings” between this date and the date of maturity.
This is based on a Government of Canada Yield of 3.88%, which is GLPT’s best
estimate based on the information available, plus a spread of 1.75%. As noted, the
relationship between the spreads and prepayment costs is such that the higher the
spread, the lower the prepayment cost.

The interest rate set out in s. 1.3(11) of the First Supplemental Trust Indenture under
the 2008 Deed of Trust is the same as the original rate reflected in the First
Supplemental Trust Indenture under the 2003 Deed of Trust, and was not intended to be
the market interest rate at the time. By maintaining the same interest rates on the
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bonds, no makewhole premium (calculated pursuant to s. 2.5 of the First Supplemental
Trust Indenture under the 2003 Deed of Trust was payable). The interest rate payable
under all senior bonds (issued on June 13, 2003 and refinanced in respect of
transmission on March 12, 2008) has been 6.60% from their date of issuance. The rate
of interest on all outstanding subordinate bonds (issued on July 31, 2003 and only
relevant for generation) has been 7.80% from their date of issuance. No bonds were
issued on June 30, 2006.

All payments under the bonds are required to be made net of taxes. If the withholding
is in respect of any Indemnified Tax, the payment required to be made under the bonds
is increased such that after the withholding is made, the bondholder receives the full
amount of interest and makewhole it had expected to receive prior to the withholding.
Please see the definition of "Indemnified Tax" in section 1.3(4) of the referenced
document for the detailed definition. In general terms, “Indemnified Tax” was
intended to address withholding taxes subsequently imposed on US bondholders who
purchased more than $3.125 million of bonds as part of the initial offering. Section 2.7
of the referenced document is a standard gross-up provision.
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Request
[10/3/2/App. 22] With respect to the Mercer Valuation:

p. 6. Please identify, and describe in detail, the “ad hoc increase effective September 1,
2009”.

p. 21. Please explain why a 2.5% long term CPI inflation rate was assumed when the
Bank of Canada manages core CPI to a 2.0% target.

Response

The ad hoc increase effective September 1, 2009 was in respect of a correction to the
pensioner upgrade provided under the Memorandum of Settlement with the Power
Workers Union dated January 6, 2001. At that time a pension upgrade was negotiated
for members of the GLPL Retirement Plan who retired prior to January 1, 2001 such
that their pensions would be based on "final average three-year earnings" instead of
"final average five-year earnings" at retirement. Each retired member was to have his or
her pension adjusted so it would be based on a three-year average earnings. Instead of
individual pension increases, an average increase for the retirees was applied for those
who retired prior to January 1, 1995: each eligible retired member who retired prior to
January 1, 1995 received a 6.2% increase to their pension at that time.

The increase effective September 1, 2009 was in respect of any retired member subject
to the 2001 Memorandum of Settlement who retired before January 1, 1995 and whose
actual final average three-year earnings exceeded their five-year average earnings by
more than 6.2%. Members whose final average three-year earnings were equal to or
less than 6.2% higher than their five-year average earnings did not receive an increase
effective September 1, 2009. The increase applied to any retired member subject to the
2001 Memorandum of Settlement, or any surviving spouse of such member, who
retired before January 1, 1995 and who was receiving a pension on January 1, 2009.

The long term CPI inflation assumption is based on the implicit long term inflation rate
obtained by comparing the Government of Canada long term bond yields to the
Government of Canada real return bond yields. That implicit inflation rate can be
described as the bond market's pricing of future long-term inflation. For the 2007-2009
period, the average monthly implicit inflation for each year in the period varied
between 2.15% and 2.55%. The implicit inflation is 2.47% for February 2010.
Consequently, Mercer believes that the assumed CPI inflation rate of 2.5% used for the
going concern actuarial valuation at July 1, 2009 can be considered as "best estimate™
as of the valuation date.

Mercer notes that due to the GLPT Retirement Plan's formula for cost of living
adjustments, the CPI inflation assumption will not affect the plan's going concern
liabilities if the CP1 assumption is between 2% and 4% per year. In other words the
going concern liabilities under this report would not have changed if a CPI inflation
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assumption of 2.00% instead of 2.50% had been used. However, to the extent that a
lower CPI inflation assumption would have resulted in lower assumed rates of
increases in pensionable earnings, increases in yearly maximum pensionable earnings
(“YMPE”) and increases in the maximum pension permitted by the Income Tax Act,
the going concern liabilities would have decreased.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 1] Please provide the calculation for each of the responses in (a) and (b).

Response
Calculation of GLPT’s response to part (a) of Board Staff Interrogatory #1:
($000's)
Revenue Requirement (pre-filed evidence) $39,365.1
Requested Rate Base 208,999.2
Change in Rate Base (1%) 2,090.0
Cost of Capital 8.42% 176.0
Depreciation 1% of total depreciation 74.1
Capital Tax 1% of capital tax 15
Cost of Capital calculated above 176.0
Income Taxes assuming 1% changes in: Interest 31.4
CCA $282.9 0.72%
and appropriate changes to: Income
Capital tax

Calculation of GLPT’s response to part (b) of Board Staff Interrogatory #1.:
($000's)

Revenue Requirement (pre-filed evidence) $39,365.1
OM&A 11,105.6
Depreciation 7,406.9
Property Taxes 258.2
Capital Taxes 145.5

18,916.2

$189.2 0.48%
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($000's)
Revenue Requirement (pre-filed evidence) $39,365.1
OM&A 11,105.6
Depreciation -
Property Taxes 258.2
Capital Taxes 145.5
11,509.3
$115.1 0.29%
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Request
[10/1/1, pp 3-4] With respect to this response:

Please explain the difference in cost between the 2007 infrared scan and the 2010
infrared scan.

Please advise how much of the $16.6 million figure in 2010 is expected to be paid to
Hydro One, and provide a breakdown, with amounts, of the services being purchased
for that total.

Response

The infrared scan cost will differ from year to year depending on how much line (kms)
or how many stations are scanned. The 2007 infrared scan was specific to issues GLPT
had with the sleeves on the # 3 Sault 115 kV transmission line which amounted to
$13,000. In 2010 GLPT plans to contract Hydro One to perform scans on a number of
circuits. It is estimated that the cost for having Hydro One perform this work will be
up to $60,000 for 2010.

GLPT will be paying up to $60,000 to Hydro One in 2010 for performing infrared
scans on lines that include the following:

. P21G and P22G

. K24G
. W23K
. #3 Sault

GLPT does not expect to pay any of the $16.6 million to Hydro One. That amount, as
indicated in the referenced interrogatory response, will be paid to third parties other
than Hydro One and other transmitters.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 17] Please explain the large jump in “Danger Tree Management” costs in
2010, and explain why that large increase is expected to continue after the test year.

Response

The increase in danger tree management is a result of GLPT catching up with work that
was deferred in 2009, as well as the continued implementation of an enhanced vegetation
management system. With the activation of tools such as the GIS system and the
vegetation mapping and development system, GLPT is better equipped to identify and
manage danger trees, and as a result there will be incremental costs associated with this
in 2010. GLPT will continue to do danger tree management. GLPT anticipates the
danger tree management portion of the vegetation management system will start to
decrease in 2011.
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21. Request
[10/1/1. P. 20] Please provide each of the hourly rates in (i) on a per-FTE basis.

Response

The amounts indicated in response to Board Staff Interrogatory 10 (i) reflects the fully
loaded hourly rate on a per-FTE basis.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 30] Please confirm that the Applicant expects to fill the vacancies referred to
in (v) before the end of the test year. Please advise the amount of contractor and
consulting savings built into the Application as a result of filling these vacancies, show
where these savings are reflected in the Application, and show how they track the timing
of filling the vacancies.

Response

GLPT expects to fill the vacancies before the end of the test year.

The contractor and consulting savings can be summarized as follows:

. 2009 Cost Reduction - $80,000 (part of Cost Driver #3 in account 4805),
. 2010 Cost Reduction - $6,660 (Cost Driver #3 in account 4805), and

. 2010 Cost Reduction - $24,517 (Other Minor Variance in account 4805).

GLPT would also like to clarify that not all of the activities and costs associated with the
engineering staff affect OM&A. A great deal of capital related work is completed by
GLPT’s engineering staff, and as a result the associated costs are not directly reflected in
the application, but instead are incorporated into project spending found in Exhibit 2.

GLPT’s savings in the application do not track the timing of filling vacancies. The
immediate savings related to a reduction in contractor costs in year of hire are assumed to
be offset by the salary and hiring costs of the new employee.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 80] Please provide the business case for the “lease arrangement” referred to.
Please provide the calculation of the $294,000 benefit. Please provide the lessor
company’s full costs relating to the leased property, the portion of all costs paid by the
Applicant, and the remaining costs including how they are recovered by the lessor.

Response

The business case is that the lease arrangement entered into provided an economical
option. Under this arrangement, GLPT only contributes 50% of the depreciation cost, and
does not provide any return on investment to GLPL for owning the assets. This results in
an annual benefit of $294,000 that is passed on to rate-payers in Ontario, plus the
avoided cost of capital associated with the assets. This arrangement was entered into to
help mitigate the impact on ratepayers.

The $294,000 benefit is the amount of depreciation that is being absorbed by GLPL, the
former user of the SCADA system. Although still owned by GLPL, the system control
centre is an asset used only by GLPT (with very limited services being provided to
Algoma Power Inc.), and as a result the $294,000 annual depreciation expense that is
being borne by GLPL results in a benefit to GLPT and its ratepayers.

GLPL’s full costs related to the lease property are the full depreciation costs, which
equate to approximately $588,000. Of this cost, $294,000 is recovered from GLPT
through the lease agreement, and the remaining $294,000 is absorbed by GLPL with no
recovery.

GLPT is responsible for all OM&A costs associated with maintaining and operating the
SCADA assets. None of these costs are borne by GLPL.
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24, Request

[10/1/1, p. 82] Please provide all agreements and other documents, forming part of or
related to the sale transaction under which the distribution business was sold, which
reference the sharing of the OSCC. Where a document references the sharing of the
OSCC, please provide the full document, not just the excerpt with the reference.

Response

No document part of or related to the sale transaction, under which the distribution
business was sold, references OSCC.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 84] Please advise why no severance costs were paid to employees in the
course of reducing the OSCC staffing from 16 to 9.

Response

At the time of reducing the OSCC staff from 16 to 9, severance was avoided through:

o Retirements,

o Re-deploying employees in the distribution business (prior to the sale), or

o Re-deploying employees to other positions within generation’s system control

centre.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 89] Please advise when the transmission business first started using the 15
year life for substation control equipment. Please advise the most recent case reference
in which there was approval by the Board of that depreciation rate for the Applicant or a
predecessor in the transmission business. Please file the study or other document
justifying the 15 year life when it was initially introduced, and when it was last approved.
Please advise the dollar impact on the amount of depreciation in the test year resulting
from the 6.67% rate as opposed to the standard 2.50% rate.

Response

GLPT has been using the 15 year life for this type of equipment since the 1950’s. In
response to Board staff’s Interrogatory #30 in the EB-2005-0241 proceeding (from which
a settlement proposal was approved by the Board), GLPL stated the following:

“GLPL has a subclass within account 1715 for substation control equipment consistent
with the APH definitions; however, GLPL has historically depreciated this according to
the system supervisory equipment rate of 6.67%.”

Further to this, the table in the same response reflects two depreciation rates for account
1715 - 2.50% and 6.67%, which reflect useful lives of 40 and 15 years, respectively.

GLPT does not have a depreciation study or document justifying the useful life. GLPT
estimates that if all of the assets depreciated over 15 years were instead depreciated over
40 years for the test year, the net impact to depreciation expense would be a decrease of
approximately $11,000.
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Request

[10/1/1, pp. 95-6] Please provide all tax planning memoranda, letters, opinions, or other
documents dealing with the tax advantages of utilizing the structure referred to in (ii).

Response

There are no tax planning memoranda, letters, opinions, or other documents dealing with
the tax advantages of utilizing the structure referred to in (ii). Given the relatively
straightforward transaction from a tax perspective, no tax planning memorandum was
specifically prepared for this transaction.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 120] Please advise the impact on rate base and revenue requirement in the
test year of the 1996 revaluation of assets and liabilities.

Response

The depreciated amount arising from the comprehensive revaluation and forming the net
book value of GLPL’s assets and included in the 2001 rate application (RP-2001-0035)
was $76,480,520. As a result of further depreciation and write-off, $52,146,300 is
included in the 2010 test year rate base.

Revenue Requirement: ($000's)
Cost of Equity Rate Base * 45% * 9.85% $2,311.4
Cost of Debt Rate Base * 55% * 6.874% 1,971.5
Depreciation Gross Value * 2.5% 1,973.5
Capital Taxes Rate Base * 0.075% 39.1
Income Taxes 1,924.0

Total $8,219.5

The impact to income taxes was calculated using the revenue requirement work form.
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29. Request

[10/1/1, p. 137] Please file the “internal assessment” referred to, if it is not the same
document referred to in Question 4 above.

Response

Please refer to SEC supplemental response #4.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 142] Please provide any studies, reports or analyses that deal in whole or in
part with the expected useful lives of assets acquired June 30, 2009 from GLPL.

Response

No studies dealing with the expected useful lives of assets acquired at June 30, 2009
were completed. The remaining service life based on the original purchase date was
adopted by GLPT upon purchasing the fleet and IT assets from GLPL’s distribution
division. By way of example, if an asset with a useful life of five years was purchased
by GLPL’s distribution division on July 1, 2008, and subsequently purchased by GLPT
on June 30, 2009, one year of the useful life had expired and therefore GLPT is
depreciating the remaining net book value over the remaining four year useful life.
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Request

[10/1/1, pp. 148, 150, 152-5] Please advise how much, if any, of the amounts marked
“Contracts” in each of the tables on these six pages was paid or payable to entities
related to or affiliated with the Applicant.

Response

No amount marked as “Contracts” was paid or payable to entities related to or affiliated
with the Applicant.
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Request

[10/1/1, p. 203] Please provide a detailed breakdown of the $1 million, showing the
transactions for which the expenditures were made, the nature of the costs within each of
“regulatory approvals” and “transfer of assets”, including amounts of the different types
of costs within those two categories.

Response

As stated in response to Board Staff Interrogatory #106, approximately $440,000 was
incurred as an expense related to the regulatory approvals for the transaction in which the
transmission assets of GLPL were transferred on March 12, 2008 to GLPT. The costs
related to the regulatory approvals were the legal expense incurred by GLPT. The
approvals in question included an omnibus application that encompassed five different
applications necessary to establish GLPT as a new transmitter. Activities included the
following:

¢ legal advice as to the approvals required to establish GLPT as a new transmitter

¢ legal advice related to the OEB approval to permit the transaction (MAAD)

¢ licensing applications to permit the existence of two transmitters to serve the
GLPT customers - one licensed transmitter to own the assets (GLPT) and another
to operate the assets (GLPL)

e request to transfer the existing transmission rate order

e request to transfer ongoing regulatory obligations under GLPL’s leave to
construct order

e consider issues arising under the Affiliate Relationship Code, including transfer
pricing

e preparation of an Operation and Maintenance Agreement to permit GLPL (the
licensed operator) to provide services to GLPT (the licensed asset owner)

e actas legal counsel in the resulting proceeding

¢ review of transaction documents from a regulatory perspective and provide
advice during the transaction (including financing-related regulatory issues).

Also as stated in response to Board Staff Interrogatory #106, approximately $555,000
was incurred as an expense related to the transfer of assets in respect of the transaction
above. These activities included:

review of all material contracts (including real estate matters) and due diligence
obtaining all contractual consents, waivers and acknowledgements

preparation of transaction documents

legal opinions

coordination between the financing and sale transactions

approvals under the Competition Act.
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Costs cannot be broken out further on a component basis as each were ongoing mandates
treated as a singular matter by the two law firms acting as legal counsel.
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Request
[10/1/2/App. 38(i)] With respect to the SCADA agreement:

p. 1. Please advise the total amount of “technical support” costs included in the test
year OM&A or capital forecasts.

p. 2. Please advise the total amount of all costs referred to in section 2.3 that are
included in the test year OM&A or capital forecasts.

p. 2. Please provide the business case for the licensing arrangement set forth in this
agreement (if it is different from the business case referred to in Question 23 above).

p. 6. Please advise the other uses to which each category of assets referred to in the
first para. of Schedule A are currently being put by GLPL.

Response

GLPT did not include any costs related to “technical support” in the test year OM&A
or capital forecasts. GLPT is required to provide technical support to GLPL in the first
year of the three year initial term commencing June 30, 2009. As the equipment is
fully operational any technical support required from GLPT during the test year is
expected to be minimal.

As noted in GLPT’s response to Board Staff Interrogatory #38 (iii), the expected
maintenance costs included in the 2010 budget are $49,400. This is the net amount
after the 5% billing to Algoma Power Inc. This is the extent of the maintenance costs
for the SCADA equipment included in the test year OM&A.

With respect to capital forecasts, GLPT did not forecast any capital spending on the
SCADA equipment in question.

The business case is the same as that described in Question 23.

There are no other uses by GLPL.
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Request

[10/1/2/App. 54(i), p. 8] Please advise whether Riskcorp Inc. still provides any services
to the Applicant. If it does, please provide the details of those services, and identify all
costs included in the test year forecasts of OM&A or capital relating to those services.

Response

Riskcorp Inc. still provides insurance to GLPT. The following insurance coverage and
corresponding cost is brokered by Riskcorp Inc.:

Property Insurance - $136,000

Automobile Insurance - $20,000

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance - $11,000
Umbrella Liability Insurance - $31,000

Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance - $12,000
Non-owned Aircraft Insurance - $1,500

The costs associated with this coverage are included in account 5635.
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Request

[10/1/2/App. 60(Vv), p. 11] Please provide the allocations of Purchase Price referred to in
section 3.7.

Response

The allocation of the Purchase Price was as follows:

. Work in progress - $6.9 Million

. Fixed Assets - $203.5 Million

The Fixed Assets for tax purposes were allocated as follows:
Class1 $114 Million
Class 8 $0.3 Million

Class 47 $89.2 Million
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Request

[10/2/2/App. 4(b)] Please advise the date this multi-year plan was approved. Please
provide the most recently approved multi-year capital plan, including the date it was
approved, the plan itself, and any presentation material or other supporting documents
provided to the Board or other decision maker as part of the approval process. If there
are no multi-year capital spending plans, please provide the Applicant’s most recent
strategic plan. If there is no strategic plan specific to the Applicant, please provide the
strategic plan of the closest upstream company in the corporate group that does have a
strategic plan.

Response

Please see Appendix 36. The multi-year capital plan was approved in 2009 during the
annual budgeting process for 2010.
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Request

[10/2/2/App. 5(a), p. 1] Please provide the numerical calculations supporting the two
dollar figures in the first paragraph.

Response

GLPT is unable to reconcile the two dollar figures in the first paragraph. GLPT believes
the two dollar figures were calculated on information that was outdated upon filing the
2005/2006 transmission rate application (EB-2005-0241). The methodology set out in
Appendix 5(a) was the basis of the amounts actually relied upon in EB-2005-0241.
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38. Request

[10/2/2/App. 15(e)] Please advise the date this multi-year plan was approved. Please
provide the most recently approved multi-year operating plan, including the date it was
approved, the plan itself, and any presentation material or other supporting documents
provided to the Board or other decision maker as part of the approval process. If there
are no multi-year operating plans, please provide the Applicant’s most recent strategic
plan. If there is no strategic plan specific to the Applicant, please provide the strategic
plan of the closest upstream company in the corporate group that does have a strategic
plan.

Response
Please see Appendix 38.
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Canada Reven Agence du reven
Bl 5505 o G0 T2 CORPORATION INCOME TAX RETURN 1 of 25 200
This form serves as a federal, provincial, and territorial corporation income tax return, unless the corporation is @ Do not use this area
located in Ontario (for tax years ending before 2009), Quebec, or Alberta. If the corporation is located in one of
these provinces, you have to file a separate provincial corporation return.
Parts, sections, subsections, and paragraphs mentioned on this return refer to the federal lncome Tax Act. This return
may confain changes that had not yet become law at the time of printing.
Send one completed copy of this return, including schedules and the General Index of Financial Information (GIFl), to your
tax centre or tax services office. You have to file the return within six months after the end of the corporation's tax year.
For more information see www.cra.gc.ca or Guide T4012, T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.
~ ldentification
‘Business Number (BN} ... ... M’ ]
“Corporation's nhame To which tax year does this return apply?
m BIH (CANADA) INC. PRO FORMA GLPT INCOME TAX Tax year start Tax year-end
Address of head offce ~2008-01:01 B3] 20081231
Has this address changed since the last ) YYYY MMDD YYYY MM DD
‘time you filed your T2 return? . . ... ... 1 Yes E 2 No Has there been an acquisition of control
‘(If yes, complete lines 011 to 018) to which subsection 249(4) applies since — e
h i P 1Yes | 2No | X
IR}  BROOKFIELD PLACE SUITE 300 (he previous tax year 063) L [X]
LB} 181 BAY STREET, P.O. BOX 762 Ifyes, provide the date
i - - - controlwas acquired . . ... .. ...... m .
| City Province, territory, or state
A TorONTO 016 el YYYMIDD
; Country (other than Ganad Postal codelZin cod Is the date on line 061 a deemed
ountry (other than Canada) ostal code/Zip code tax year-end in accordance with )
A s 213 subsection 249(3.4)? ... ......... By 1ves| | 2No

‘Mailing address (if different from head office address) s the corporation a professional
‘Has this address changed since the last P P

corporation that is a member of
time you filed your T2 return? . . ... .. m 1 Yes D 2No @ ap:rtnership? e r ........ 1 Yes D 2No | X|
(If yes, complete lines 021 to 028)

Is this the first year of filing after:

c/o
BROOKFIELD PLACE SUITE 300 Incorporation? . ... ..... ... ... gl 1yes| | 2No ﬁ
181 BAY STREET, P.O. BOX 762 Amalgamation? ... ............ (&Y 1 Yes | 2No | X
City ’ Province, territory, or state If yes, complete lines 030 to 038 and attach Schedule 24.
@ TORONTO m ON Has there been a wind-up of a
i subsidiary under section 88 during the p—
Country (other than Canada) m Postal code/Zip code current tax year? . ... . ... ... 1 Yes LJ 2 Mo @
M>sJ 213 If yes, complete and attach Schedule 24.

Location of books and records . )
: Is this the final tax year

; Has the location of books and records o 1Yes| | 2No X
“changed since the last time you filed — = before amalgamation?  .......... L] X
your T2return? . .. .. ... ... .. ... m 1Yes Lj 2No | X| Is this the final return up to —
(If yes, complete lines 031 to 038) dissolution? . ................ 1 Yes Lj 2 No @
BROOKFIELD PLACE SUITE 300 If an election was made under
181 BAY STREET, P.O. BOX 762 section 261, state the functional
; City Provinceterritory, or state currency used . ............... 079
m TORONTO m ON Is the corporation a resident of Canada?
‘ Country (other than Canada) Postal code/Zip code X If no, give the country of residence on line
1Yes U 2No D 081 and complete and attach Schedule 97.
M5] 273
| 081
m Type of corporation at the end of the tax year i R
— Canadi rolled c i rolled Is the non-resident corporation
1] anadian-controlle 4 | x| Lorporation controile claiming an exemption under R
L private corporation (CCPC) D by a public corporation an inco?ne tax treaty? . .......... m 1Yes D 2 No @
2| Other private 5 D Other corporation If yes, complete and attach Schedule®1.
corporation (specify, betow) If the corporation is exempt from tax under section 149,
3 Public tick one of the following boxes:
‘  corporation @ 1 | Exempt under paragraph 149(1)(e) or ()
If the type of corporation changed during | i
‘the tax year, provide the effective 2 Exempt under paragraph 149(1)()
‘date of the change. 043 8 - 3 | | Exempt under paragraph 149(1)(t)
YYYY MM DD 4 | Exempt under other paragraphs of section 149

Do not use this area

B = - = : a—

H

T2 E (08) Canad'é'

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - EP11  VERSION 2009 V1.0 Page 1 of 8
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~ Attachments Appendix 05(a)
2 of 25

i Financial statement information: Use GIF| schedules 100, 125, and 141.
; Schedules — Answer the following questions. For each Yes response, attach to the T2 return the schedule that applies.

Yes Schedule

=
:Is the corporation related to any other corporations? . . . . . L e 150 PS 9
Is the corporation an assoiated CCPC? .. .o oot ettt 160 | EEPY
iIs the corporation an associated CCPC that is claiming the expenditure limit? . . .. . ... ... .. .. ... . 161 ;FM 49
‘Does the corporation have any non-resident Shareholders? . . . . ... oottt it 151 D(J 19
Has the corporation had any transactions, including section 85 transfers, with its shareholders, officers, or employees,
- other than transactions in the ordinary course of business? Exclude non-arm's length transactions with non-residents 11
: If you answered yes to the above question, and the transaction was between corporations not dealing at arm's length,
‘were all or substantially all of the assets of the transferor disposed of to the transferee? . . . ... . ... ... ... . .. ... ... ... .. 44
' Has the corporation paid any royalties, management fees, or other similar payments to residents of Canada? ... ... .. .......... 14
i Is the corporation claiming a deduction for payments to a type of employee benefit plan? . . ... ... 15
Is the corporation claiming a loss or deduction from a tax shelter acquired after August 31, 19897 . .. . . . o i i T5004
Is the corporation a member of a partnership for which a partnership identification number has been assigned? . ... ... .. ........ T5013
Did the corporation, a foreign affiliate controlled by the corporation, or any other corporation or trust that did
“not deal at arm's length with the corporation have a beneficial interest in a non-resident discretionary trust? .. ... .. ... ... ... .... 22
Did the corporation have any foreign affiliates during the year? . . . . . . .. 25
| Has the corporation made any payments to non-residents of Canada under subsections 202(1) and/or 105(1)
rof the federal Income Tax Regulations? . .. . . . . e 29
- Has the corporation had any non-arm's length transactions with a non-resident? . . .. . ... T106
“For private corporations: Does the corporation have any shareholders who own 10% or more of the corporation's
ccommon and/or preferred Shares? L L L L L L 50
Has the corporation made payments to, or received amounts from, a retirement compensation plan arrangement during the year?
!Is the net income/loss shown on the financial statements different from the net income/loss for income tax purposes? .. ........... 1
: Has the corporation made any charitable donations: gifts to Canada, a province, or a territory;
gifts of cultural or ecological property; or gifts of medicine? . . . . . . L, 2
i Has the corporation received any dividends or paid any taxable dividends for purposes of the dividend refund? ... ... ... ......... 3
.Is the corporation claiming any type 0f l0SSES? . . L . L L 4
‘Is the corporation claiming a provincial or territorial tax credit or does it have a permanent establishment
dnmore than one jurisdiction? L L L L 5
Has the corporation realized any capital gains or incurred any capital losses during the tax year? . .. .. . .. o [¢]
i) Is the corporation claiming the small business deduction and reporting income from: a) property (other than
-dividends deductible on line 320 of the T2 return), b) a partnership, c) a foreign business, or d) a personal
-services business; or ii) is the corporation claiming the refundable portion of Part 1tax? . .. . . ... . ... .. 7
‘Does the corporation have any property that is eligible for capital cost allowance? . . . . . .. .. ... 8
i Does the corporation have any property that is eligible capital Property? . . . . o oo 10
:Does the corporation have any resource-related deductions? . . . .. .. .. . 12
Is the corporation claiming reserves of any KINd? . . .. L L 13
s the corporation claiming a patronage dividend deduction? . . . ... 16
Is the corporation a credit union claiming a deduction for allocations in proportion to borrowing or an additional deduction? ... .. ... ... 17
Is the corporation an investment corporation or a mutual fund corporation? . . . . L 18
Is the corporation carrying on business in Canada as a non-resident corporation? . . . . . . . ..., 20
Is the corporation claiming any federal or provincial foreign tax credits, or any federal or provincial logging tax credits? . .. ... ....... 21
Does the corporation have any Canadian manufacturing and processing profits? . . . . . . . . . .. 27
the corporation claiming an investment tax credit? . . . ... 31
Is the corporation claiming any scientific research and experimental development (SR&ED) expenditures? . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... T661
Is the total taxable capital employed in Canada of the corporation and its related corporations over $10,000,000? . . .. .. .. ..... ...
'1s the total taxable capital employed in Canada of the corporation and its associated corporations over $10,000,000? ... ... ... .....
iIs the corporation claiming a surtax credit? . . . L L 37
Is the corporation subject to gross Part VI tax on capital of financial institutions? . . . . . .. . . ... 38
Is the corporation claiming a Part | taxcredit? . . . . . L e 42
Is the corporation subject to Part V.1 tax on dividends received on taxable preferred shares or Part V1.1 tax on dividends paid? 43
Is the corporation agreeing to a transfer of the liability for Part VI.1 tax? . . . . . .. . 45
s the corporation subject to Part Il - Tobacco Manufacturers’ surtax? . . . .. ... L. L 46
: For financial institutions: Is the corporation a member of a related group of financial institutions with one or
:more members subject to gross Part VItax? .. . L 39
Is the corporation claiming a Canadian film or video production tax credit refund? . . . . . . . .. ... 253 L T113
Is the corporation claiming a film or video production services tax credit refund? . . . . L L 254 L T1177
‘Is the corporation subject to Part XII1.1 tax? (Show your calculations on a sheet that you identify as Schedule 92) ... .......... ... 255 [ 92
CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - EP11 VERSION 2009 V1.0 Page 2 of 8
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~ Attachments — continued from page 2 :ipfﬂzns"‘“f‘(a) vP——
| Did the corporation have any foreign affiliates that are not controlled foreign affiliates? . . . .. ... . ... .. ... .| T1134-A
| Did the corporation have any controlled foreign affiliates? . . . . ... . L 1 T1134-B
Did the corporation own specified foreign property in the year with a cost amount over $100,000? . . . .. .. ... .. ... 1 T1135
‘Did the corporation transfer or loan property to a non-resident trust? . . . L L e T4
*Did the corporation receive a distribution from or was it indebted to a non-resident trustinthe year? .. ... ... .. .. ... ... ... ... L T1142
Has the corporation entered into an agreement fo allocate assistance for SR&ED carried out in Canada? . .. ... ... .. ... L T1145
' Has the corporation entered into an agreement to transfer qualified expenditures incurred in respect of SR&ED contracts? ... ... .... 1 T1146
‘Has the corporation entered into an agresment with other associated corporations for salary or wages of specified employees for SR&ED? 1 T1174
i Did the corporation pay taxable dividends (other than capital gains dividends) inthe tax year? . . .. .. .. ... ... ... ... ... ... & 55
i Has the corporation made an election under subsection 89(11) nottobe a CCPC? . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... | | T2002
Has the corporation revoked any previous election made under subsection 89(11)? . . . . . . _J T2002
! Did the corporation (CCPC or deposit insurance corporation (DIC)) pay eligible dividends, or did its p—
‘general rate income pool (GRIP) changein the taxyear? . . .. ... . L 53
'Did the corporation (other than a CCPC or DIC) pay eligible dividends, or did its low rate income pool (LRIP) change in the tax year? N 54
~ Additional information
Hs the COrPoration INACHVE? .« o« o oo 1 Yes H 2 No X
Has the major business activity changed since the last return was filed? (enter yes for first-time filers) ... .. ... .. ... .. 28 1 Yes 2 No X |
3 What is the corporation's major business activity? . .. .. ................. @
- (Only complete if yes was entered at line 281)
I the major business activity involves the resale of goods, show whether it is wholesale or retail .. ... ... ... . 1 Wholesale D 2 Retail | L
;Specify the principal product(s) mined, manufactured, i HOLDING COMPANY 235 100.000 %
'sold, cpnstructed, or services provided, giving the 286 287 “'%
- approximate percentage of the total revenue thateach ~ ool — — . o bl
"product or service represents. 288 289 %
Did the corporation immigrate to Canada during thetax year? ... ... L 291 Y D 2 No )57
' Did the corporation emigrate from Canada during the tax year? .. ... ¥arY 1Yes; | 2No ZJ
/Do you want to be considered as a quarterly instalment remitter if you are eligible? . ... . ... ... yak] 1 Yes f_} 2No L
. If the corporation was eligible to remit instalments on a quarterly basis for part of the tax year, provide
:the date the corporation ceased to be eligible . . . . . ..., m

. YYYY MM DD
!If the corporation's major business activity is construction, did you have any subcontractors during the tax year? .. ... ... .. @ 1Yes B 2 No D

— Taxable income
:Net income or (loss) for income tax purposes from Schedule 1, financial statements, or GIFI.

300 2,919,407 A

:Deduct: Charitable donations from Schedule2 .. .. ... .. ... . ... ... ... . ... ...
| Gifts to Canada, a province, or a territory from Schedule 2 . . . .. ... ... ......
Cuttural gifts from Schedule 2 . . . .. ... ... .
Ecological gifts from Schedule2 ... . ... .. ... ... .

Gifts of medicine from Schedule 2 . . ... ... ... ... ..
Taxable dividends deductible under section 112 or 113, or subsection 138(6)
from Schedule3 . .. .. L

Part V.1 taxdeduction® . . . . ...
Non-capital losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4 . .. ... ...........
Net capital losses of previous tax years from Schedule4 ... ... .. ... ......
Restricted farm losses of previous tax years from Schedule4 . . .. .. ... ... ..
Farm losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4 . . . .. ... ...... .. .....

Limited partnership losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4 .. ... ... .....
Taxable capital gains or taxable dividends allocated from
acentralcreditunion ... ... L

Subtotal > B
‘ Subtotal (amount A minus amount B) (if negative, enter "0") 2,919,407 ¢
| Add: Section 110.5 additions or subparagraph 115(1)(a)(vi) additions . . . . . . . . .. .. . D
'Taxable income (amount C plus amount D) . .. L m 2,919,407
i
Income exempt under paragraph 149(1)() . . . .. L L 370
; Taxable income for a corporation with exempt income under paragraph 149(1)(t) (line 360 minus line 370) ... ... .. ... 2,919,407 7

* This amount is equal to 3 times the Part V1.1 tax payable at line 724.

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - EP11  VERSION 2009 V1.0 Page 3 of 8
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Schedule 2
~ Small business deduction ~———Appendix-05(a)
: Canadian-controlled private corporations (CCPCs) throughout the tax year 4 of 25
Income from active business carried on in Canada from Schedule 7 . . . . . . ... ... e m o A
- Taxable income from line 360, minus 10/3 of the amount on line 632*, minus 3 times the amount on
-line 636™*, and minus any amount that, because of federal law, is exempt form Part Itax .. .. ... ... ... ... . ... .. m B
' Calculation of the business limit:
For all CCPCs, calculate the amount at line 4 below.
400,000 X _ Number of days in the tax year after 2006 and before 2009 366 = 400,000 1
Number of days in the tax year 366
500,000 x Number of days in the tax year after 2008 = L. 2
Number of days in the tax year 366
Add amounts at lines 1 and 2 400,000 4
| Business limit (see notes 1and 2 DEIow) ... ... e e m c
Notes: 1. For CCPCs that are not associated, enter the amount from line 4 on line 410. However, if the corporation's
tax year is less than 51 weeks, prorate the amount from line 4 by the number of days in the tax year
divided by 365, and enter the result on line 410.
2. For associated CCPCs, use Schedule 23 to calculate the amount to be entered on line 410.
' Business limit reduction:
i Amount C X ﬂ i D e E
ﬁ 11,250
Reduced business limit (amount C minus amount E) (if negative, enter "0") . . . . . ... e E F
§Small business deduction
Amount A, B, C,
tor F whichever
lis the least X Number of days in the tax year before January 1, 2008 X 16% = 5
Number of days in the tax year 366
{Amount A, B, C,
-or F whichever
is the least X Number of days in the tax year after December 31, 2007 366 x 17% = 6
Number of days in the tax year 366
Total of amounts 5 and 6 — enter on line 9 m G
* Calculate the amount of foreign non-business income tax credit deductible on line 632 without reference to the refundable tax on the
CCPC's investment income (line 604) and without reference to the corporate tax reductions under section 123.4.
** Calculate the amount of foreign business income tax credit deductible on line 636 without reference to the corporate tax reductions under section 123.4.
. *** Large corporations
* If the corporation is not associated with any corporations in both the current and the previous tax years, the amount to be entered at line 415 is:
(Total taxable capital employed in Canada for the prior year minus $10,000,000) x 0.225%.
* If the corporation is not associated with any corporations in the current tax year, but was associated in the previous tax year, the amount to be
entered at line 415 is: (Total taxable capital employed in Canada for the current year minus $10,000,000) x 0.225%
* For corporations associated in the current tax year, see Schedule 23 for the special rules that apply.
~ Resource deduction
: Taxable resource income {as defined in subsection 125.11(1)] . . . . . . . m H
' Amount H X Number of days in the tax year in 2006 X 5% = I
Number of days in the tax year 366
.Amount H X Number of days in the tax year in 2007 X 7% = J
Number of days in the tax year 366
. Note: Resource deduction is no longer available for tax years starting after December 31, 2006.
‘Resource deduction - Total of amounts fand J . . . .. . L m K

-Enter amount K on line 10.

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - EP11  VERSION 2009 V1.0
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~ General tax reduction for Canadian-controlled private corporations ———————————————Appendix 05(a)

I Canadian-controlled private corporations throughout the tax year Sof25

jTaxabIe income from line 360 . L L. L e A

j Lesser of amounts V and Y (line Z1) from Part 9 of Schedule27 ... .. ... ... ... ... B
[Amount QQ from Part 13 of Schedule 27 .. . . L _ C
i Taxable resource income from line 435 . . . . . . L e D
fAmount used to calculate the credit union deduction from Schedule 17 . ... . ... .. ... .. .... E
F
G
>

?Amount from line 400, 405, 410, or 425, whicheveris theleast . ... .. ... ... ... ... ...
ﬁAggregate investment income from line 440 . . . . . ...
‘Totalofamounts B, C, D, E, F,and G . . . . . . . .. H
:Amount A minus amount H (if negative, enter "0") L L L L e e e e

‘Amount | X Number of days in the tax year before January 1, 2008 X 7% = J
. Number of days in the tax year 366

Number of days in the tax year after

Amount | x December 31, 2007, and before January 1, 2009 366 x 85% = K
‘ Number of days in the tax year 366

Number of days in the tax year after
j Amount | X December 31, 2008, and before January 1, 2010 X 9%

I Number of days in the tax year 366

i
-

Number of days in the tax year after
- Amount | X December 31, 2009, and before January 1, 2011 X 10% = L1

Number of days in the tax year 366

General tax reduction for Canadian-controlled private corporations ~ Total of amounts J, K, L,and L1 . .. ... ... ..... M
. Enter amount M on line 638.

— General tax reduction
Do not complete this area if you are a Canadian-controlled private corporation, an investment corporation, a mortgage investment corporation,
or a mutual fund corporation, and for tax years starting after May 1, 2006, any corporation with taxable income that is not subject to the
corporation tax rate of 38%.

Taxable income from line 360 (for tax years starting after May 1, 2008, amount Z) . . . .. . i it e e 2,919,407 N

:Lesser of amounts V and Y (line Z1) from Part 9 of Schedule 